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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility
for the contents of this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of
the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the Directors (the “Directors”) of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited Y& f]
B fR) B R A Al (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the
information contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and no misleading, (2)
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this annual report misleading or
deceptive; and (3) all opinions expressed in this annual report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.

The report will be available on the Company’s website http://www.lfwty.com and will remain on the “Latest
Company Announcements” page on the GEM website at http://www.hkgem.com for least 7 days from the date of
its posting.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B %5 2

Result E 4
Year ended 31 December
BZ12AMBLEE
2017 2016 2015
201745 20164 20154
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE Tt BN RN =
Revenue WA 38,617 31,179 24,409
Profit before taxation B B AT & A 13,895 20,716 17,909
Income tax expense FriSHi & (6.772) (4,523) (3,578)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the RRARHENEEFE
year attributable to owners of the Company wA R A AW S BT 7,123 16,193 14,331
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As of 31 December
®W12A318
2017 2016 2015
20175 20164 20154
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NGBl A\ T ARBFTT
Total assets BEE 176,060 135,808 189,191
Total liabilities wEE 87,633 80,660 150,236
Total equity attributable to owners RARIEE AEIS
of the Company B 88,427 55,148 38,955
Financial Statistics Bt 3% 4% 5
2017 2016 2015
20175 20164 20154
Current Ratio’ B b K 2.4 1.7 1.1
Gearing ratio (%)? BEBBELLE%)? 49.8 59.4 79.4
Return on total assets (%)? 488 FE B 7R (%) 4.1 11.9 7.6
Return on sales (%) 5 & B 3] (%) 18.5 51.9 58.7
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
By % 2

Key Financial Data FTEMKEE
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB RMB
AR AR
Earnings per shares — basic® BRAEN-EARS 0.009 0.022 0.019
Net assets value per shares® BREEFES 0.108 0.074 0.052
Notes: B 5
1. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities. 1. RBLERDERDEERARDEEFTE -
2. Gearing ratio to total assets ratio is calculated by dividing the total 2. EEABBLRERNRBEBERUNEEETE -

liabilities by total assets.

3. Return on total assets is calculated by dividing the profit for the year 3. BEELMBMIIBRFNGMNRABEESE -
by total assets.

4. Return on sales is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by 4. HERBMETNRFNEMBRIAEERETE -

revenue.
5. Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to 5. BRAEMTDIEAR B FE ARMEF R R AE
owners of the Company for the year by weighted average number of ANEBITEBRZNEFHEEE -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

6. Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing the net assets by 6. BRAEFENDRFEERUNFABEITEAR
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. ZMEFHEE  -AEFEHELEERBEEE -
Net assets represent total assets less total liabilities.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # B & 1 & (%) B R 2 7]



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
THEHRESE

Dear honourable shareholders,

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in
the sale of burial plots, provision of other burial-related
services and provision of cemetery maintenance services.

BUNEBHWRE :
REFA AEEFEREHEER RHHEMOEZMHEBER
BRERHEERE -
Zhao Ying,
Non-executive Director and Chairman
iR =
IEHITEEREE
Dear Shareholders, BEMNSMLRR :

| am pleased to present, on behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”), the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

2017 was a significant milestone to our Group. On 27 September
2017, the Company has been successfully listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
successful listing was a proof that the Company’s philosophy in
respect of the diversified burial business has been supported and
recognized by various sectors of the community. Along with the
enhanced reputation by the listing, we believe that the confidence
of our clients and suppliers will be boosted, and hence the Group
will be fostered further in vigorous growth and development.

We have grown substantially since our inception in 2007. In 2017,
the operating income of the Group amounted to RMB38.6 million,
representing a growth reaching 23.9% (2016: RMB31.2 million)
compared to 2016. Profit attributable to the shareholders of the
Groups had decreased from RMB16.2 million in 2016 to RMB7.1
million in 2017, whereas the decrease in the profit attributable to
the shareholders was mainly due to the one-off listing expenses of
RMB14.0 million (2016: RMB1.4 million) incurred in 2017. Without
taking into account of the non-recurring expenses, the profits of the
Group amounted to RMB21.1 million (2016: RMB17.6 million).

RAABRERTEEBME (ZR)ERAR(TEQF])
EZ([BEEE)MAREZARAREHEBE AR
(GBI RNEBEDEHZE2017F12A31B L EEHK
BIZRAMBHRE -

017 RAEE—REZHNERER - R2017F9A
278 A RRAKNWEEABER S BR A A
([BERAT)) GEMEME L o EM A FE R AR A
HRRBRZEZ TN LEESBItEEROT
MR - BEEEMBROBZRA KMEE
BZMOEPEHEFRNELEGIRS THAX
SEE—PEHKE-

B2007F Bl AR B M ERAE - 201 7F A& B
BEWABAREIZEAH BT K2016F 18 K i
23.9% (20165 : AR¥312B87T) - AEERE
JE (535 F 201689 A R¥E16.28H B LR 4 2017
FNARBIIBETL BREEGEZIRLEER
R07TFEELE—AM ETRAIARBI408E T
(2016F : AR¥148E L) o Tt Ll IELFEF
S AREBFEMNAARE2118 87T (20165 : A
R¥&17.6B887T) °
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBEE

We operate our burial plot in Langfang under the brand & 1{ &
(Wan Tong Yuan), derived from “& & K5 © BlZ 1 (garden with
phoenixes perching on everlasting plane trees)”, which symbolizes a
treasured land that preserves the spirits of the departed. Langfang,
one of the most fast-growing cities in Hebei province, has
experienced a relatively stronger growth in its economy and burial
services market, compared with the general situations in Hebei
province. Conveniently located in Langfang, our cemetery is
approximately 40 kilometers and 60 kilometers from downtown
Beijing and Tianjin, respectively, offering a sought-after burial site for
local residents as well as customers from surrounding areas and
neighboring cities. We expect to further broaden our customer base
as the integration of the Jing-Jin-Ji megalopolis deepens. In Jing-Jin-
Ji megalopolis, we explore suitable acquisition targets of burial plots
as well as the upstream and downstream burial industries for
business expansion. We strive for joint ventures by funeral parlors
across multiple regions. We eagerly seek for strategic alliances and
acquisition opportunities along the whole burial industry chain.
Meanwhile, we endeavor to develop the funeral services in Langfang
and related regions to form a diversified development system and
line up more resources. Also, we attract more professional in
investments and merger and acquisition talents, thereby quickly
boosting the development of Company into a stronger one.

To fully leverage our competitive strengths, we will further expand
our business scope and provide diversified and personalized ritual
services. Meanwhile, our carefully-designed cemetery provides
comfort and tranquility for our visitors. On the basis of our
committed, experienced and stable management team, we would
involve more professional management personnel in specific work.
Through accumulating valuable knowledge about the local customs
and preferences in terms of burial practices, enhancing the
integration with the burial cultures of overseas and other regions, we
closely tracking the market trends and customer preferences. Given
our experience and market reputation, we are also supported by the
available land parcels within our cemetery and the broadened
customer base, we believe we could understand customers’ needs
more comprehensively. Besides, through establishing new cemeteries
together with various funeral ceremony services provided, we shall
continue to grow our burial business.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # B & 1 & (%) B R 2 7]
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRMES

After the listing of the Company in 2017, it will provide the Group
with more available resources for its the development of the existing
businesses and further expansion of service scopes.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our shareholders, clients, business partners and suppliers for
their trust and continued support in our Group; | would also like to
express my sincere gratitude to the management and staff for their
dedications and contribution over the years.

Chairman: Zhao Ying
21 March 2018, Hong Kong
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TERBNWE DN

Business Review

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the sale of
burial plots, provision of other burial-related services and provision of
cemetery maintenance services in Langfang.

Sales of burial plots and provision of other burial-related
services

Burial services were the largest component of our revenue,
representing 92.1% of our revenue for year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: 91.5%).

The burial services market in Langfang is concentrated. Demand for
our burial service and growth in our revenue are driven by the
overall demand for burial services in Langfang and the Jing-Jin-Ji
megalopolis at large. We believe our reputation, quality of services,
and well-maintained and conveniently located facilities allows us to
compete effectively in Langfang. The Company is optimistic that this
operation will be continuously developed and expanded.

Provision of cemetery maintenance services

We provide ongoing cemetery maintenance services as an integral
part of our burial services to maintain our beautiful landscaped
cemetery. Customers pay for maintenance fees upfront when the
sign the sales contracts to purchase the burial plots. Our revenue
from cemetery maintenance services was RMB3.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016:RMB2.6 million).

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # B & 1 & (%) B R 2 7]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE kAT

Strengths
Burial services provider strategically located in Langfang

Through our longstanding presence in Langfang, we believe that we
have accumulated valuable knowledge about the local customs and
preferences in terms of burial practices. Leveraging our experience,
local knowledge and market reputation, and supported by the
available land parcels within our cemetery and the broadened
customer base, we believe we are able to continue to grow our
business by making additional burial plots based on customer
demand. Subject to strict regulatory restrictions and government
zoning policies, the provision of burial services may encounter
significant entry barriers, and therefore, we believe our well-
established operations represent a considerable first-mover advantage
over potential competitors seeking to penetrate the burial services
market in Langfang and the Jing-Jin-Ji megalopolis at large.

Comprehensive burial services to satisfy diversified
customer needs

Instead of basic burial services with limited scope for unique designs
or customization, we offer diversified burial services to customers of
different preferences and budgets and attract local customers who
are willing to pay a price premium for unique designs or
customization and customers from neighboring cities where
affordable burial sites have come increasingly sparse.

Brand associated with professionalism and commitment to
social responsibility

We operate our cemetery under the brand "&#iE (Wan Tong
Yuan)” and cooperate with a network of third-party funeral services
providers in Langfang which refer customers to us. We believe our
brand exemplifies our professionalism and commitment to social
responsibility. We strive to provide professional burial services to our
customers. To this end, we provide on-the-job training to all of our
employees, with a strong focus on cultivating the moral character.
We believe that employees with sufficient industry experience and a
virtuous character are better suited to attending customers in
emotional stress with professionalism and delicacy. We also keep
abreast of market changes and customer demand from our daily
operations.

Committed, experienced and stable management team

We believe that our committed, experienced and stable management
team enables us to form a vision of long-term development, closely
track the market trends and customer preferences with industry
insights to adjust our business strategies and execute our business
initiatives on a consistent basis.

B3

{52 50 BRIy B S b ER O TR SR R TG (L B 7
HREMBRFEABY TS SHAEHRMAERT
BENAMBARRESEEZBOANE - BER
P& AiABELRTEEE MEERER
ARLEERSEANEPE  HABGSEHMAT
ENFEFPFERBENEEMTBEERER - XR
MBS B E R B R B B3 R - IR 22 R
BREEMEBERAEAPIE Bt HABETE
MEBLHTRMARBESFHFEALENES
B2 ARG R R ERmEBEERETS

EEBFRS M ETREF TR

EXBERGOBRATREEER - M H IR
HADETRRELREEEFNSEBERS -
Rl TREXMERAERRB EENLUE S
REBRUAHIONBEERTES

HREXEMAELSEETHBENME

B 8MEIAE YERBHE=TEER
BHREBETHEESELAARMEBETP - &M
BREMNMEZE T RMANFTERLCRAEAER
HEEE BHPBHIAREFPRESENEERE -
Bt ZMRE2REERFEERIZI  EMBE
miE - RPEEABEDTELBRESHREN
BEUEEXMABUAMBERERNBELBNE
F-HZMTAERELEETERTHEHNREFLF

mE KRSELRENEEBK
BABAEHE KREEARENEERKAR®
BMBERPERER UTERRENENEE
MSEBEREFRLY  AEFEABRRMOHES
REREBRMNESLE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E% njL i & Tﬁ

Outlook

We aspire to strengthen our market position in Langfang and
expand our business in the Jing-Jin-Ji megalopolis and beyond
through the following strategies.

Strengthen our market position in Langfang

We plan to strengthen our market position in Langfang by further
developing the undeveloped area within our cemetery, upgrading our
facilities, diversifying our burial-related services, and enhancing our
marketing efforts, such as Further develop the undeveloped area,
upgrade our facilities, diversify our burial-related services as well as
enhance our marketing efforts.

Expand our business scope to provide funeral services

We generated substantially all of our revenues from burial services
during the current and prior years. We have forged stable business
relationship with a number of local funeral services providers which
refer customers to us. We believe, however, that one-stop-shop
services that integrate funeral and burial services are able to confer
a significant competitive advantage, as bereaved families generally
prefer dealing with fewer service providers to ensure a seamless and
smooth experience at each stage of the process.

Tap further into the burial services market in the Jing-Jin-
Ji megalopolis

Leveraging our strategic location in Langfang and proximity to
regional hubs in the Jing-Jin-Ji megalopolis, we plan to tap further
into the burial services market in this region, especially in Beijing,
where affordable burial sites have become increasingly sparse and
local residents become increasingly mobile with the construction of a
web of high-speed intercity transportation infrastructure. We plan to
devote more marketing resources to serving the neighboring cities
and develop further cooperation with local funeral service providers
as our business partners. We target to set up one funeral service
shop in each of 2018 and 2019 in Beijing to promote our burial
services locally.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # B & 1 & (%) B R 2 7]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE kAT

Pursue strategic alliance and acquisition opportunities

We have built our business so far primarily through organic growth.
Going forward, we intend to selectively acquire, invest in or enter
into strategic partnerships with other death care services providers,
including funeral service providers and cemetery operators. We base
our selection criteria on, among other things, brand name, location,
land cost, land reserves and profitability. We generally favor
cemeteries located in wealthy and densely populated provinces,
where there is a higher demand for death care services in high-
quality. In particular, we seek to prioritize business expansion
opportunities with death care services providers in the Jing-Jin-Ji
megalopolis and bring synergy to our current operations. Save for
above disclosed, there were no plan authorised by the Board for
other material investments or additions of capital assets at the date
of this annual report.

Financial Review
Revenue

Our revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 was substantially
generated from: (i) sale of burial plots, which includes the right to
use the burial plots and headstones and other ancillary products to
be used on the burial plots; (ii) Other burial-related services such as
the organization and conducting of interment rituals, the design,
construction and landscaping of the burial plots, and the engraving
of inscriptions and ceramic photographs on the headstones, and; (iii)
cemetery maintenance services. The table below sets forth a
breakdown of our revenue:

SKEBBELHFERS

B —EXTREBNMERETER RERK
BMREEENEAREBEREHER LEER
LERFHMERRBEUEHRBE KB
HEFR - RANIEREER (AP EE) BE -
FREEM ~ TR - LB RANEES - ARA
OZENERENHNEEERRBNFLES
WEMA-—REFZEEDHEL - ARTE &K
MEIBERERRENTEZRRBEER
MEBREREEE  RIE XK K FRE - KR
EXFRBREEN BEAFHAY EESUE
BEFHEMERKREXRNEEAEENS -

Bt 7 [B] B8

gz
FEZ=2017F 128318 IEFE AUz K305 2k
B:()BEMHEE aREmFRAERER R RNEM
FERANEMEEER  (VEMBEZEBERSE 7
METBERBTLREERNUAREHRT 2R
S8 REEHMABXEBEEFEEERE
DiEE G ERE - TR HRMAOUZHME

Year ended December 31

BZNRANBLEE

2017 2016

201745 20164
% of total % of total
Revenue revenue Revenue revenue
W = 1 48 Uk 35 U 2§ 1l B =
(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) %

(AE¥T ) (NREF 1)
Sale of burial plots and provision of 4 & & i I 4% i

other burial-related services Hith 78 58 0 B AR 7% 35,566 92.1% 28,531 91.5%
Cemetery maintenance services EEMBEERE 3,051 7.9% 2,648 8.5%
38,617 100.0% 31,179 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EE njL i & Tﬁ

Benefiting from the regional economic growth, we have grown
substantially since our inception in 2007. Our revenue for 2016 and
2017 was RMB31.2 million and RMB38.6 million, respectively,

B A E &I K - 3 82007 4F &l 3 LA 7k 2%
BE o FF92016F M2017FEN W F D Al A AR
BI2EB TR AREIBEETL FEEXRA

representing a year-on-year growth rate of 23.9%. The increase was 23.9% ° #INETEEZ AN E L ER AW
primarily due to (1) an increase in the total number of burial plots EEEE M RQFETERBWRFZHEM T

sold and recognized as revenue, and (2) an increase in the average
selling price of burial plots sold and recognized as revenue.

Cost of sales and services

Cost of sales and services consist primarily of the costs we incur in
relation to the provision of our services. Our cost of sales and
services increased by RMB1.5 million, or 26.2%, from RMB5.5 million
for 2016 to RMB7.0 million for 2017.

6 (B30 -

& & AR & A AR
HERREEAZTEBERERMUMRERBEED
A - MM EE RRBEKARIEIMARKISES
J03%26.2% * H2016F M A RBS5a &g mse
2017 F M ARBETOEETT ©

Year ended December 31

BEZ12A31BLLEE

2017 2016

20174 20164
Cost of % of total Cost of % of total cost
sales and cost of sales sales and of sales and
services and services services services
HER HAHER HE R HBEER
BR 7 B A< B 7 BY 2 R A AR R A AR
(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) %

(AR¥ T ) (AR®EF )
Burial services BERY 6,379 91.1% 5,127 92.5%
Cemetery maintenance HE#E 621 8.9% 418 7.5%
7,000 100.0% 5,545 100.0%
The increases were mainly due to our business growth in burial ENTEEHREMPNBEREESEMEER -

services. Our cost of sales and services include the headstone cost,
which represented the cost of the headstones used for burial plots;
land acquisition cost, which represented the cost to acquire land for
development into our cemetery; cemetery maintenance cost, which
represented the cost for the ongoing landscaping and maintenance
of our cemetery; burial-related cost, which represented cost for
designs, headstone engraving, props and offerings for interment
rituals, labor and other expenses incidental to the provision of burial
service; and others, which represented land development and
depreciation and amortization expenses relating to burial facilities.
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BAMEERRERAREEMKAN - FHEHBHR
%%ﬁm&ﬁ'imW%ﬁ$ 8 W B £ 1 DA B
?%ﬁmﬁﬁ ER#ENA BERARESH
KR M RA E%ﬁﬁ&$ R B
EUR *“%Tﬁﬁﬁgm‘%lﬁ$&khﬁﬁ
REMEMERMS  REAM  ELHRAEKA
REEMWREABOTE RBHFAX -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE kAT

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit represents revenue less cost of sales and services. Our
gross profit for 2017 and 2016 was RMB31.6 million and RMB25.6
million, respectively.

FEF R EFE
TR SR 5 & R R A AS o F 120176 &
2016F M EFD A AAREINAEETRARK
256H & T °

Year ended December 31

BZ12B3MBLEE
2017 2016
201745 2016%F
Gross  Gross profit Gross Gross profit
profit margin profit margin
ER EF= EH EFIE
(RMB’000) % (RMB’000) %
(AR¥T ) % NONGERW) %
Burial services R R 29,187 82.1% 23,404 82.0%
Cemetery maintenance 2R % 2,430 79.7% 2,230 84.2%
31,617 81.9% 25,634 82.2%

Our overall gross profit margin for 2017 and 2016 was 81.9% and
82.2%, respectively. Our relatively high gross profit margins and net
profit margins during the year were primarily due to (1) the relatively
high gross profit margins and net profit margins in the burial
industry, (2) our ability to provide high-quality burial services, and (3)
the relatively low land acquisition cost for our cemetery.

Other income

Our other income decreased by 42.0% from RMB7.6 million for
2016 to RMB4.4 million for 2017. This decrease was primarily due to
a decrease in interest income on loan receivables in 2017 following
the repayment of certain loans by an independent third party.

Distribution and selling expenses

Our distribution and selling expenses increased by 24.0% from
RMB3.7 million for 2016 to RMB4.6 million for 2017. This increase
was primarily due to an increase in commission paid to partnered
funeral service providers and salary and staff costs.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 18.1% from RMB2.7
million for 2016 to RMB3.2 million for 2017. This increase was
primarily due to our business expansion and an increase in salary and
staff costs.

HAPI2017F R2016F M BB EF X H 5] £81.9%
5822% - KM FERNEFERFFBERFHR
BEEZRHPAMBETENTH X XFFE X
HHEE  QBRMENRERELEBERS Q)
HMEEN T UK AR -

H b Uz A

M EAMUW A B2016FMNARE7.68 8 TH D
42.0% 220175 ARE44H5E T RO ETER
HRBYE=ZFEEETERE 2017FEKE
KA F B U AR D e

DENEERX

RO DR EER Y H2016EMAREITEE
TCIE II24.0% E2017F M ARBA6E B L K
FTEREARINBEERBEEFEHOMESEM
NEa kB TR -

1T X2

FARTHRFAZA2016FEMARE2. 788 TN
18 1% ZE2017TFMARBICEE T HEFTER
BREMAERERET KB TKAEN -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE kT

Initial public offering expenses

Our initial public offering expenses increase by 879.5% from
RMB1.4 million for 2016 to RMB14.0 million for 2017, primarily due
to fees and expenses we incurred from professional advisers in
connection with the preparation of the Listing.

Finance Costs

Finance costs represented interest expense on bank loans. Our
finance costs decreased from RMB4.8 million for 2016 to nil for
2017. This decrease was primarily due to the full repayment of
certain bank loans in 2016.

Profit before taxation

Our profit before taxation decreased by 32.9% from RMB20.7
million for 2016 to RMB13.9 million for 2017.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased by 49.7% from RMB4.5 million
for 2016 to RMB6.8 million for 2017, generally consistent with the
increase of our revenue.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Our profit and total comprehensive income for the year decreased by
56.0% from RMB16.2 million for 2016 to RMB7.1 million for 2017.
Our net profit margin decreased from 51.9% for 2016 to 18.4% for
2017, primarily due to the fees and expenses incurred from
professional advisers in connection with the preparation of the
Listing in 2017.

Earnings Per Share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2017
calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 815,753,425 was RMB0.009 (basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016: RMB0.022).

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # B & 1 & (%) B R 2 7]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE kAT

Cash Flow

Our cash and cash equivalents increased by RMB24.6 million to
RMB81.7 million as of 31 December 2017 from RMB57.1 million as
of 31 December 2016, principally attributable to:(i) the net cash
inflow of RMB1.6 million from our operating activities; (ii) the net
cash outflow of RMB12.0 million from investing activities; (iii) the net
cash inflow of RMB35.0 million from financing activities which was
primarily due to issue of share capital of the Company of RMB59.3
million as well as repayment of advance to related parties of
RMB54.7 million relating primarily to an interest-free loan to a
related party.

Pledge of assets

There was no charge on the Group's assets as at 31 December 2017
and 2016.

Inventories

Our inventories primarily consist of burial plots, headstones and
others. The related carrying amounts of the cemetery assets
attributable to the burial plots are transferred to inventory upon the
commencement of development of cemetery assets into burial plots
with the intention of sale in the ordinary course of business.
Headstones are recognized as inventory when they are contracted
for sale and set up in the cemetery. Inventories are transferred to
cost when the customer obtains the right to use the burial plot. Our
inventories decreased by 35.7% from RMB5.5 million as of
31 December 2016 to RMB3.5 million as of 31 December 2017,
primarily due to the decrease in the number of headstones
contracted and ready for sale but yet to be transferred to the
customers.

HeEn=E

BMMRe B SEEWEMARB 246658
F2016F12A31HM AR KS7 1B B Tt M=
2017F12A3MHM AR 7TEE T T B2 H

R ORMEEEBMERSRAFEARRG
BET (VREEBHGRERLFEARE20

BET (NETARTRAARE3EE LM
FXEHEB SRS EREENEEHBFER
ARBSATEBTEHRMEZHMBESRNF
EARMIS0OEET

B EEMA

M20174F &20165F12 A31H » R&EE W & F [ &
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rE

BN EETEREEN BEMLRHM  EipE
HEREENEHEAERNEREERKBRERA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE kT

Prepayments and other receivables

Our prepayments and other receivables decreased by 94.6% from
RMB5.7 million as of 31 December 2016 to RMBO.3 million as of
31 December 2017, primarily due to the settlement of staff loan
receivables.

Trade and other payables

Our trade and other payables decreased by 31.5% from RMB30.9
million as of 31 December 2016 to RMB21.2 million as of
31 December 2017, primarily due to the decrease of advances from
customer. Advance from customers represented the amount of
payment made by our customers when they sign the sales contracts
but before the right to use the burial plots is transferred. Our
advance from customers decreased during the 2017, primarily due to
the occurrence of interment for certain customers during the
relevant periods and the supplemental agreements signed following
our adoption of the new sales policy in December 2016.

Deferred income

Deferred income represented the portion of the payment received in
connection with the provision of cemetery maintenance that has not
been recognized as revenue in accordance with the revenue
recognition policy and the nature of the business. Our deferred
income increased by 22.4% from RMB42.3 million as of
31 December 2016 to RMB51.7 million as of 31 December 2017,
generally consistent with the increase in burial services sold during
the relevant years.

Capital Structure

On 23 May 2017, the authorized share capital of the Company was
increased to US$30,000,000 by the creation of an additional
2,999,950,000 ordinary shares with a par value of US$0.01.

On 27 September 2017, pursuant to the Global Offering, new
shares including a public offer of 125,000,000 shares of the
Company and international placing of 125,000,000 new shares of the
Company have been issued on 27 September 2017 at the offer price
of HK$0.28 per share.

On 27 September 2017, 749,990,000 shares under Capitalization
Issue were allotted and issued by capitalizing US$7,499,900.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E fi J= FI—J- aliii] & Tﬁ

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2017, we had bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB81.7 million (2016: RMB57.1 million). We have
financed our working capital, capital expenditures and other capital
requirements primarily through income generated from our
operations. In the future, we expect to fund our capital
expenditures, working capital and other capital requirements from
cash generated from our operations, the net proceeds from the
Global Offering and bank and other borrowings.

Gearing ratio

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on annual
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risk associated with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through payment of
dividends, issue of new shares and repurchase of shares as well as
issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio of the Group, being total
liabilities to total assets, was 49.8% (2016: 59.4%), which indicates
the Group's healthy liquidity position.

Employee Remuneration and Relations

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 64 employees
(2016: 54 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy
will be reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and
contribution of the employees and the industry remuneration level. In
addition, the Group also provides various training courses to
enhance the employees’ skills and capabilities in all aspects.

Commitment

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had operating lease
commitments in respect of rented office of approximately RMBO.6
million (2016: RMB0.8 million). As at 31 December 2017, the Group
had capital commitments in respect of purchased equipment of
approximately RMBO0.5 million (2016: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2017 (2016: Nil).

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposals

During 2017 and 2016, the Group did not make any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies and
significant investments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYS y
BIEEN W RO

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business is principally denominated in Renminbi. As
certain bank deposits denominated in Hong Kong dollars, therefore,
the Group is exposed to foreign currency exchange risk. No currency
hedging arrangement had been made by the Group during the year.
The Directors have positive attitude to regular monitor the exposure
to foreign exchange so as to reduce the foreign exchange rate risk

to minimal.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRSE

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to establish and maintain good corporate
governance practices and procedures. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the Board has adopted its own code on
corporate governance practices which incorporate all the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”). The Directors of the Company will continue to review its
corporate governance practices in order to enhance its corporate
governance standard and ensure further standards be put in place by
reference to the recommended best practices whenever suitable and
appropriate.

This Corporate Governance Report is to outline the major principles
of the Company's corporate governance. Shareholders of the
Company are encouraged to make their views known to the Group
if they have issues with the Company's corporate governance and to
directly raise any matters of concern to the chairman of the Board
("Chairman™”).

Board of Directors

Our Board currently consists of six Directors, comprising one non-
executive Director (“NED"), two executive Directors (“EDs”) and
three independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). The powers and
duties of our Board include convening general meetings and
reporting our Board’s work at our Shareholders’ meetings,
determining our business and investment plans, preparing our annual
financial budgets and final reports, formulating proposals for profit
distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties
as conferred by our Memorandum and Articles of Association. The
composition of the Board during the year ended 31 December 2017
and up to the date of this report was as follows:

Name of Director

EspR

EEEMAREARFEE2017F12A318 1 F
EMHEERRE -

TEERER

ARABBNDEBEIREFRTCETAERLKER -
HZE2017F12A31BLFE EE2ERKMER
GMLEEREMRTH - HA BB X TGEM:E
HFEMRA(TGEMEMARA DM+ RSt %
ERTR(EEATAUDMBTAER - AR
REEREERTED %E@ﬁﬁ iR A EH B
%amm& WHERRAEREESE2EHER
BRE— TR ERE-

AEEERBEMARRBEEE SN I ERA -
WARRBRHYADBEEEAFRAEAHE -
AUBRAAEBERLERN TANERRES
EXF(EFDELEMZBEINSEE-

BExg

EFeRBHAARESEHEX BRE—RIFRTE
E MBRITEEN BB FATEE -EF
EMENNBELEAARERSYARREAS
tEREFEEN T BETEBREETE
BFEEHRBEREZFRE HERFDREZ
URITHEASGERAMREEE FHOEMESD -
BeERBE TREIHZE2017F12A31H IEF
ELHEEAREAHEEENRERE

Position

B

Zhao Ying (appointed on 25 January 2017)

Non-executive Director and Chairman

B (R2017F1H25H EZ F) HFRITESREIR

Li Xingying (appointed on 21 March 2017) Executive Director

F W (R2017F3 /21 H EZE ) BITES

Huang Guangming (appointed on 21 March 2017) Executive Director

BER (R20179F3/21HEZEE) HITES

Cheung Ying Kwan (appointed on 7 September 2017) Independent non-executive Director
RIEIR (R2017F9/7H #EZ (T) BIUENITES

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (appointed on 7 September 2017) Independent non-executive Director
FokHE (R20174F947H # Z (F) BIFNTES

Choi Hon Keung, Simon (appointed on 7 September 2017)  Independent non-executive Director
%58 (R2017F9H7HEZ F) BYFMITES
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There is no relationship between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. The Directors do not have financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. The
biographical details of the Directors and other senior management
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages from 32 to 37 of this annual
report.

During the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
INEDs with at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting and related financial management
expertise as required under the GEM Listing Rules among the
Directors. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from all of the independent non-executive Directors
and the Board is of the view that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions, financial performance and monitoring business
and performance. The Board provides high-level guidance and
effective oversight of the Management and holds regular meetings to
discuss the Group’s businesses and operations. All Directors carry out
their duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
involving conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the management team. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed by the Board
periodically to ensure that they accommodate the needs of the
Group. Executive Directors and senior executives meet regularly to
review the performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole.
The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of
management including circumstances where management should
report back, and will review the delegation arrangements on a
periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of
the Group.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
delivery of the Board functions.

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with
measurable objectives. A diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, industry knowledge and experience,
education, race, age, gender, background and other qualities of
directors. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors in accordance with Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquires of the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company during the period from the date of listing up to the date
of this report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are carried out by different individuals. The role of Chairman
is held by Ms. Zhao Ying, and the role of Chief Executive is held by
Mr. Yu Minghua. The Chairman provides leadership for the Board
and ensures its effectiveness in all aspects. The Chief Executive has
the delegated power to monitor the daily operation and
management of the Company. The Board will keep reviewing the
current structure of the Board and the need of appointment of a
suitable candidate to perform the role of Chairman.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed three Independent Non-executive Directors representing
more than one-third of the Board and at least one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The functions of Independent Non-executive Directors are primarily to
bring an independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conducts at board meetings.
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Confirmation of Independence

Each of Independent Non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence by reference to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors were independent during the Year.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the EDs is engaged on a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years. The Company has also issued a
letter of appointment for a term of three years to the NED and each
of the INEDs.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are governed by the Articles of Association. The
Company has established a Nomination Committee which is
responsible for reviewing the Board composition, monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of the Directors and assessing
the independence of the INEDs.

The Articles of Association provides that any Director so appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting. Any Director so appointed as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the first annual
general meeting (“AGM") of the Company after his appointment
and be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Any Director so
appointed by the Board shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, At each annual
general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors is
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one third shall be the number of retiring Directors. The
Directors to retire in each year shall be those who have been in
office longest since their last re-election or appointment but, as
between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on
the same day, those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree
among themselves) be determined by lot.
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Continuous Professional Development for
Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. During the year ended December
31, 2017, all Directors, including Ms. Zhao Ying, Ms. Li Xingying,
Mr. Huang Guangming, Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan, Dr. Wong Wing
Kuen, Albert, Mr. Choi Hon Keung, Simon had studied the reading
materials relevant to corporate governance and other regulatory
requirements in order to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the
overall strategies and policies of the Company. Additional meetings
are held when significant events or important issues are required to
be discussed and resolved.

The following table indicates the number of Board, committee and
general meetings during the financial year and the number of
attendance by each of the Directors:
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Number of meetings attended/held

HE/ BTEHERY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name ] Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
EEe ERZEEE ¥FHzEe REzEg BRRAE
Non-executive Director and Chairman FETESHREIR
Zhao Ying ik
(appointed on 25 January 2017) (R2017%1H25H EZ (F) 5/6 — — ”n —
Executive Directors BTES
Li Xingying ZHAE
(appointed on 21 March 2017) (R2017F3821H#Z(F) 6/6 — — — —
Huang Guangming HEHR
(appointed on 21 March 2017) (R201743/21HEZ (F) 6/6 — — — —
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHTES
Cheung Ying Kwan 3 JE 458
(appointed on 7 September 2017) (R201749A 70 #Z (T) 3/6 11 11 11 —
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert FoxiE
(appointed on 7 September 2017) (R2017%#9H7HEZ (F) 3/6 1” 1 — —
Choi Hon Keung, Simon BEER
(appointed on 7 September 2017) (R20174%9/70 B Z fF) 2/6 0/1 1" 11
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Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All the Board committees should report to the Board on their
decisions or recommendations made.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing
Rules and paragraph C3.3 of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing rules. The Audit Committee
consists of three members, namely Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert,
Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan and Mr. Choi Hon Keung, Simon. The
chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist our Board
by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system of our Group, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of external auditors, reviewing our
financial information and disclosures, to oversee the audit process, to
develop and review our policies and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

During 2017, the Audit Committee held 1 meeting to review and
discuss of the relevant draft quarterly financial statements and
results announcements and reports of the Group.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 5.34 of the GEM
Listing Rules and paragraph B1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert, Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan and Ms. Zhao
Ying. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Dr. Wong
Wing Kuen, Albert. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include (but without limitation): (i) making
recommendations to the Directors regarding our policy and structure
for the remuneration of all our Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing the remuneration policies; (ii) making recommendations
to our Board on the remuneration packages of our Directors and
senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to our Board’s
corporate goals and objectives.
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The Company has adopted the model to delegate the remuneration
committee to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

During 2017, the Remuneration Committee meet one time to review
the remuneration policies and remuneration packages of the
Directors of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee consists of
three members, namely Ms. Zhao Ying, Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan and
Mr. Choi Hon Keung Simon. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Ms. Zhao Ying. The primary function of the
Nomination Committee is to make recommendations to our Board on
appointment of members of our Board. During 2017, the
Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and concluded that the members of
the Board have possessed the expertise and independence to carry
out the Board’s functions and responsibilities.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Statements

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The Board is committed to providing a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of quarterly, interim and annual reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under
the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor on
the financial statements of the Group are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies,
practices on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct applicable to employees and the Directors, and reviewing
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report contained in the Company’s annual
reports.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor, in respect of audit
services for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
RMB870,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the fees paid/payable for
the services provided by the Company's auditor are set out as
follows:

Services rendered

REHRE
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Fees paid/payable
B ENER

Statutory audit services
EEBERRY

Non-statutory audit services as reporting accountant for
listing of the Shares of the Company on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange

TER B MG 5T A0 A B 24N 2 8 I% 5 7 B 52 BT GEM 1 /9
IEETE B IR

Non-audit services

FEZR

RMB870,000
A R #870,0007T

RMB2,400,000

A R #2,400,0007T

RMB359,000
A R #359,0007T

Remuneration of Senior Management

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management is set out by band as follows:

= &N E BB H N
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Number of employees

BEAH

2016
20164

o HK$1,000,000

£ %1,000,0007% 7T 3 4
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board recognises the overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance, and review of the risk management and internal
control system and an effective risk management and internal
control system enhances the Group’s ability in achieving business
objectives, safeguarding assets, complying with applicable laws and
regulations and contributes to the effectiveness and efficiency of its
operations. The senior management reviews and evaluates the
control process and monitors any risk factors on a regular basis and
reports to the Board and the Audit Committee on any findings and
measures to address the variances and identified risks.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group’s risk management and internal control procedures
include a comprehensive budgeting, information reporting and
performance monitoring system. The Audit Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function and the Group's
risk management and internal control system annually, covering all
key control, including financial, operational and compliance. The
result of review will be reported to the Board and some measures
would be proposed if there is any area for improvement. During the
year, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and considered them
effective and adequate.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Koon Fai (“Mr. Lam”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 6 March 2017. The biographical details
of Mr. Lam are set out under the section headed “Biographies of the
Directors and Senior Management”. For the year ended
31 December 2017, Mr. Lam has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in accordance with Rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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Shareholders’ Right

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders of the Company and the
Board. An AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at
the place as may be determined by the Board.

Right to Convene EGM and putting forward proposals at
general meetings

Each general meeting, other than an AGM, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM"”). EGM shall be convened on
the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two Months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

EGM shall be called by at least 14 days’ notice in writing. The
written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong of the Company marked with the
attention of the Company Secretary, and such may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.
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Enquires to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquires to the Board in writing to
the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company.

Enquiry Contact:

By email: admin@Ifwty.com
By post: 36/F, Tower Two, Times Square,
1 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Attention: Public Relationship

Investors Relations

The Company has maintained a continuing dialogue with the
Company’s shareholders and investors through various channels,
including, among others, the Company’s annual, interim and
quarterly reports, notices, announcements and circulars and the
Company’s website at www.lfwty.com. The Company also holds
press conferences from time to time at which the Executive Directors
and senior management of the Group are available to answer
questions regarding the Group’s business and performance.

Inside Information

The Company regulates the handling and propagation of inside
information according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” published by the Securities and Futures Commission
and as indicated in the corporate responsibility policy and various
affiliate proceedings to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the propagation of such information is efficiently and
consistently made. The Company regularly reminds the Directors and
employees about the due compliance with all policies regarding the
inside information with the latest regulatory updates.

Change in Constitutional Documents

The Company has adopted the memorandum and articles of
association on 7 September 2017 for Listing. Save to above, for the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Board do not aware of any
significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) consists of six Directors,
comprising one non-executive Director, two executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors.

ZHAO Ying (#5)
Non-executive Director and Chairman

Ms. ZHAO Ying (##), aged 47, joined our Group in January 2017
and was further designated as a non-executive Director in March
2017. Ms. Zhao serves as a director of Langfang City Property
Development Co., Ltd. (BE¥mE @ FEHEFEBR QA since
February 2008 and a non-executive director of China VAST Industrial
Urban Development Company Limited (FRZRZEXMEEREBR
A 7A]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
6166 since August 2014.

LI Xingying (Z= )
Executive Director

Ms. LI Xingying (£ %), aged 38, was appointed as an executive
Director in March 2017. Ms. Li has 15 years of experience in burial
services industry. Ms. Li joined our Group in November 2007. Before
joining our Group, she served as a clerk and cashier of Wan Tong
Yuan from March 1999 to September 2000 and a salesperson in
Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd. (JEE37 71 35 [& = 1 25 59
BB AT]) from September 2000 to March 2003. From March
2003 to October 2005, Ms. Li served as the marketing manager of
Wan Tong Yuan, being responsible for the overall management of
the customers’ services center and business administration thereof.
Ms. Li served as the general manager of Wan Tong Yuan from
October 2005 to November 2007 and the executive general manager
of Langfang Wantong from November 2007 to May 2015. Ms. Li has
been the sole executive director, legal representative and general
manager of Langfang Wantong since May 2015. In November 2016,
Ms. Li took the 35th Training Class of Modern Cemetery in China
and President Workshop (R =+ AEZ2HBERAEZEEITEA
F A& IE), which was organized by China Funeral Association (7
BEHHS).
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HUANG Guangming (& & FA)
Executive Director

Mr. HUANG Guangming (E EF#J), aged 43, was appointed as an
executive Director in March 2017. Mr. Huang has more than six
years of experience in burial services industry. Mr. Huang rejoined
our Group as a deputy general manager of Langfang Wantong in
September 2013. Mr. Huang served as the human resources
manager of Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd. (EB¥5
¥ [& = b EE 9 3% 5 PR 2 A1) from June 2004 to November 2007, the
deputy general manager of Langfang Wantong from November 2007
to June 2010 and the general manger of Chengde Yonglun Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (AfE X mFEHEFRZE AR A F]) from
June 2010 to September 2013. From time to time, Mr. Huang
supervised the operation of the purchasing center of Langfang City
Property Development Co., Ltd. (B M [EFEHEREER QA
during September 2013 and March 2017, which was a part-time
position only.

Mr. Huang received associate (KX=) level education in Marketing
from Hebei University of Science and Technology (it %l A £)
and graduated from the same university in July 2001.

CHEUNG Ying Kwan (5 & 1)
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. CHEUNG Ying Kwan (5K f&3#), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent nonexecutive Director in September, 2017. Mr. Cheung
has more than 20 years of experience in finance and accounting.
Mr. Cheung has been the company secretary of China Mental
Resources Utilization Limited (FEI&BZERFABRAE) from
March 2013, (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code 1636 since February 2014). Mr. Cheung served as the financial
controller of Gushan Environmental Energy Limited (5 Z2R1REER A
fR A &) from March 2006 to August 2013, the qualified accountant
and company secretary of Goldigit Atom-tech Holdings Limited (&2
B FREFIERAER AR (currently known as Jinchuan Group
International Resources Co. Ltd (& JI|EBEEHEERABRAR)), (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 2362) from
April 2001 to March 2006 and an independent non-executive
director of Beijing Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments Co., Ltd (1t
MEMIEZEHEBIMRMDER QA company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 1858) from March 2015 to March 2018.
Mr. Cheung has been an independent non-executive director of the
following companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including Tian
Shan Development (Holding) Limited (KL ZE (J£%) BBR A A) (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 2118) since
June 2010, Gold-Finance Holdings Limited (£ BRE A F) (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 1462) since
February 2016, ZACD Group Ltd (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 8313) since December 2017. Mr. Cheung
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has been a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since November 2000 and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since April
1995. Mr. Cheung obtained a diploma in Fabric Manufacturing from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in September 1981.

WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (E 7k #)
Independent non-executive Director

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (F 7k #), aged 66, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of audit
committee and the chairman of remuneration committee in
September, 2017. Dr. Wong has approximately 23 years of
experience in accounting. Dr. Wong has a broad range of experience
serving as directors of various listed companies, including as an
independent nonexecutive director of China VAST Industrial Urban
Development Company Limited (P AREXMHEERER LA (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 6166) since
August 2014, an independent nonexecutive director of APAC
Resources Limited (2 K&EJRBRE R A]) (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code 1104) since July 2004, an
independent nonexecutive director of Solargiga Energy Holdings
Limited (5 8ERIZRBRAF]) (@ company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 757) since January 2008, an independent
nonexecutive director of China Merchants Land Limited (FRfE/® & b
B A7]) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
978) since June 2012, an independent nonexecutive director of
Capital Finance Holdings Limited (B # € BIER AR 2 A (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 8239) since
1st January, 2018, a principal consultant of KND & Co. CPA Limited
WESTAMEBAAEMR QA since April 1994 to 31st December,
2017. Dr. Wong was appointed a principal consultant of KND
Associates CPA Limited, Hong Kong &5 & 5HAT 7T AR A A]) since
2nd January, 2018.

Dr. Wong received a degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the Bulacan State University, Republic of the
Philippines in December 2010. Dr. Wong is member of the following
institutions, including: a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators; a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries; a fellow member of The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong; a member of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute; a fellow member of Association of International
Accountants; a fellow member of Society of Registered Financial
Planners; a member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators; an
associate member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland;
and a full member of Macau Society of Certified Practicing
Accountants.
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CHOI Hon Keung, Simon (%% 38)
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. CHOI Hon Keung, Simon, aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in September, 2017. Mr. Choi
has more than six years of experience in corporate governance.
Mr. Choi served as an independent non-executive director of
Kenford Group Holdings Limited GZE L EIER AR 2D F) (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 0464) from
August 2011 to September 2017, and an independent non-executive
director of Boyaa Interactive International Limited (B 8B E B
fR 2 d]) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
0434) since October 2013. Mr. Choi obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
Laws from Peking University (1t X A£8) in 1991 and a master's
degree in Laws from The University of London in 1992. Mr. Choi
received his Common Professional Examination Certificate in Laws
and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong
Kong in June 1994 and September 1995, respectively. Mr. Choi was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong and the UK in November 1997
and June 1998, respectively.

Senior Management

Our senior management is
management of our business.

responsible for the day-to-day

Mr. YU Minghua (5 BB %)

Mr. YU Minghua (R B3 %), aged 39, joined our Group in February
2016. Mr. Yu is currently the chief executive officer of our Company
and a deputy general manager of Langfang Wantong, being
responsible for product development and business expansion of our
Group. Mr. Yu has more than three years of experience in burial and
funeral services industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Yu served as
the deputy general manager of Guangxi Huazuyuan Investment Co.,
Ltd. (B ZEREIREGR A A]) from May 2013 to September 2014
and a deputy project general manager of Puyang Hualong District
Longxiang Cemetery Park Co., Ltd. (S MR ELZERER A
7)) from March 2010 to February 2011. From September 2009 to
March 2010, Mr. Yu received a burial services training at Changsha
Social Work College (& & BB 5 #2117 22 Fx).
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LIU Fengxue (2|8l &)

Mr. LIU Fengxue (%8l &), aged 36, joined our Group in November
2007. Mr. Liu is currently the general administration vice president of
our Company and a deputy general manager of Langfang Wantong,
being responsible for the daily operation and general management
of our Group. Mr. Liu has more than 14 years of experience in
logistical support and corporate administration. After joining our
Group, Mr. Liu has been serving as the head of security in Langfang
Wantong since November 2007, and he was promoted as the head
of logistical support department and deputy general manager of
Langfang Wantong in July 2010 and June 2016, respectively. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Liu served as the head of security team of
Lanshuiwan Property Management (& K& #72) of Langfang City
Hengtai Services Co., Ltd. (BB¥H M IE R R B B R 2 ) from
November 2002 to November 2007.

CHU Yunli (&8 Z F))

Mr. CHU Yunli (# Z ), aged 46, joined our Group in November
2007. Mr. Chu is currently the financial controller of our Company,
being responsible for the overall management of financial reporting
and cost management of our Group. Mr. Chu has been the financial
controller at Langfang Wantong since he joined our Group. Mr. Chu
has nine years of experience in corporate finance. Mr. Chu attended
correspondence courses (FK#X) and received his associate (K =)
degree in Accounting from Beijing Institute of Business (1t &7 i1 226%)
(currently known as Beijing Technology and Business University (3t
TR KE)) in July 1997.

GAO Ping (&%)

Ms. GAO Ping (&), aged 35, joined our Group in November 2007
and has more than 14 years of experience in customers’ services and
marketing. Ms. Gao is currently the marketing vice president of our
Company and has been the marketing manager of Langfang
Wantong since its establishment, being responsible for the overall
management of the marketing department of our Group. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Gao served as the sales executive of
Wantongyuan from October 2005 to November 2007 and the
marketing manager of Langfang Economic and Technological
Development Area Yongsheng Real Estates Development Co., Ltd.
(BB R XAEMEREZEARAA) from November 2003 to
October 2005. Ms. Gao attended correspondence courses (F#) and
obtained her associate (XZ) degree in Physical Education from
Hebei Institute of Physical Education (i it 8 & £F3) in July 2003.
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LAM Koon Fai (#773 #8)

Mr. LAM Koon Fai (#73#), aged 49, was appointed as the chief
financial officer and company secretary of our Company in March
2017, being responsible for the overall financial management of our
Group and advising the Board on corporate governance matters.
Mr. Lam has numerous years of auditing and accounting experience,
including serving as chief financial officer of GINSMS Inc., a
company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange (stock code: GOK)
from May 2009 to October 2013.
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The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

Corporate Reorganisation

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 25 January 2017.

In preparing for the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”), the Group underwent
the Corporate Reorganisation (as defined under note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements) and the Company became the
holding company of the companies comprising the Group upon the
completion of the Corporate Reorganisation on 14 March 2017.

Details of the Corporate Reorganisation are set out in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements. The shares of the Company were
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange with effect from
27 September 2017.

Principal Activities and Analysis of
Operations

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group was
principally engaged in the sale of burial plots, provision of other
burial-related services and provision of cemetery maintenance
services.

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, an analysis using financial key
indicators as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) can be found in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section, which forms part of this Directors’ Report of
this annual report.

Results

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 59.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). The Company is not
aware of any arrangements under which a shareholder has waived or
greed to waive any dividends.
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Financial Summary

The summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group is set out on page 5 of this annual report.

Key Risks and Uncertainties Facing by the
Group

The followings are part of the key risks and uncertainties identified
by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

The Group operate one cemetery in Langfang and any significant
downturn of the regional economy or changes in local regulatory
regime or burial practices could materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations. The
management regularly review and adapt our services to cater to the
customs and preferences of the local residents in order to retain
existing customers and to attract prospective customers.

The death care industry in China, subject to the strict requirement of
relevant regulations imposed by the government, is a highly
regulated industry. There are strict restrictions on licenses and land
supply which pose risks and uncertainties on the Group’s business
expansion. The Group have adopted internal guidelines to ensure
that the sale of burial plots to living customers satisfy these
conditions as required by the relevant laws.

There are uncertainties associated with the expansion of our
business. The successful implementation of our expansion strategies
may be influenced by various factors such as our ability to identify
suitable business opportunities or expansion plans on our cemetery,
to obtain government and other third-party consents, permits and
licenses that are required to operate our business. The expansion of
our burial services is also dependent on customer satisfaction and
our marketing efforts. In order to maintain growth in our business,
it may be necessary for the Group to implement marketing initiatives
to create public awareness and acceptance of our services.

Key Relationships with Employees,
Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant
assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a
caring environment to employees and emphasise the personal
development of its employees. The Group maintains a good
relationship with our customers and suppliers. The Group aims to
continue providing quality products and services to our customers
and establishing co-operation strategy with our suppliers.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares
listed on the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The Group’s subsidiaries are incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, Hong Kong and China. The Group’s operations are
mainly carried out by the Group’s subsidiaries in China while the
Group also has a corporate and administrative office in Hong Kong.
Our establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands, China and Hong Kong. During the year under review,
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
the Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries have purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s listed
securities.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Investment Properties

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property Interests

We valued certain material property interests as at 30 June 2017 at
approximately RMB120.6 million as disclosed in the Prospectus.
Those assets were not stated at the valuation in our financial
statements according to the accounting rules and principles. If those
assets has been stated at the valuation at 30 June 2017, an
additional depreciation/amortization of approximately RMB1.7 million
would be charged against the income statements for the year ended
31 December 2017.
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Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
under review and as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Premium and Reserves

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year under review are set out on page 62 in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

The Company’s total distributable reserves as at 31 December 2017
amounted to RMB2,531,000.

Charitable Donations

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group made
approximately RMB563,000 charitable donations. (2016: Nil)

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there are no single
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group revenue. (2016:
Nil). Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 90.5% (2016: 99.8%) of the total purchase for the
year and purchase from the single largest supplier 56.3% (2016:
89.0%) of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the Directors,
their close associates, nor any of the shareholders of the Company
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the five
largest customers and suppliers of the Group.

Remuneration Policy and Retirement Benefits
of the Group

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 64 employees
(31 December 2016: 54 employees). The Group provides employees
with competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration
policy will be reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance
and contribution of the employees and the industry remuneration
level. In addition, the Group also provides various training courses to
enhance the employees’ skills and capabilities in all aspects. Details
of the Group's the retirement benefit plans are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this report were:

Name of Director

EspR

=)

HZE2017F1N2A3MHLEFERBEARERL S
ARRZEEZREMT

Position

=2

Zhao Ying (appointed on 25 January 2017)
MR (R2017F 1 250 # Z ()

Li Xingying (appointed on 21 March 2017)
FEE(R2017F3721H #EZ (F)

Huang Guangming (appointed on 21 March 2017)
HER(R2017F3H21HEZ (F)

Cheung Ying Kwan (appointed on 7 September 2017)
SR FE R (2017957 H # 2 (F)

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (appointed on 7 September 2017)
FokE(R2017F9F7H #Z (T)

Choi Hon Keung, Simon (appointed on 7 September 2017)
BOE R (R2017F9H7H #EZ )

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 32 to 37.

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years which
may be extended as each and the Company may agree, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
("AGM") in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Article 108 of the articles of association of the Company
provides that at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

Change of Information of Directors

Below are changes of directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of GEM Listing Rules from the Listing
Date to the date of this annual report:

During 2017, Mr. Choi Hon Keung, Simon has resigned as an
independent non-executive director of Kenford Group Holdings
imited GZREEERBER AR (@ company listed on the Stock
change with stock code 0464) on 12 September 2017.
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Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Cheung Ying
Kwan has resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Beijing Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments Co., Ltd. (3t T &7 IE
EBESEMALD B MR A F]) which shares listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code 1858, on 16 March 2018.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one vyear
without the payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which any
Director or Controlling Shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
financial year or at any time during the financial year under review.

Directors’ Rights to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year under
review, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement that would enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18,
were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities
of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any
such right.

HE2017F12A3B ILFERE®E  REBRELER
F2018F3 A16 0 B (T 1k | h & 3L IF 3 B E 25
BHERAB (RGBT LW RO :
1858) KB IEMITES o

EERBEL
BERNEERREFASEEEE2ES A
AEBEIMKE AR LAEENAIE —FRK
e A EHEEE CEERBERIN 2REAH -

ESRXE ZRHEREGHNZESR

BN E Ot B MmaR M 32 EE S A K
FEEXODBEMRFETANSR HEAQAFE
FYEBERREAEEXBAR MAQA
HEMMBARKRARAMBARRANTZER
R RHFXEHNERLREREETERES -

EERERNUBEEZ ZER

BARESHEEEIN ROBEFER ARAR
HALM B2 B &2 EA] A 2 PR A
RAEEABEBBARRR KA EAMEAEEE
RO EEE 2T AESHNDS  THEESHE
ERMEBHTNARNR T FRER T EMERNIAR
BARRHEMEMEABRZRASEREE
HATEEMBEER -
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of each
of the Directors and chief executive and their associates in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required to be recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Name of Director Nature of interests

EERTHRASAROG 2 ER

M2017F12A318 - EF RITHABHE LK E 28
BEABMEBERARASEFANERER(ERRLES
MEREGRO ([FHREBE GO EXVELR) 2 &M
HEROREEZREBEBREES KBAEEH
EXVEFETIRSAHMERNRB R Rz &
KB (RREBEZIHFLBEGRIBBEXEERE
EARIEEB 2 Rm R AR)  UIREBEFHFRBE
{EHIF32G AR BN ARAFE 2 Bz #xs
MoK A - KRB GEM £ 48 R 655.46=5.67 152 A
GARNARBRAZERIABNT

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of
securities held

EEHR ERME FEESHEE BREHENEI L
Ms. Zhao Ying (Note 2) Founder of a discretionary trust who can 750,000,000(L) 75%
influence how the trustee exercises its (Note 1) (Note 3)
discretion
AL (M 5E2) EHEETEYA  AIHEXEATER 750,000,000(L) 75%
[N R PN (M &ET) (P 5E3)
Notes: M 3E

(1) The letter “L” denotes long position of the Shares of the Company.

(2) Ms. Zhao Ying is the chairman and non-executive Director of the
Company. She is the settlor, sole member of The Hope Trust's
protective committee and a beneficiary of The Hope Trust, which is a
discretionary trust and TMF (Cayman) Ltd. is on the trusts of The Hope
Trust. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. wholly owns the entire share capital of Lily
Charm Holding Limited. Lily Charm Holding Limited wholly owns the
entire issued share capital of Tai Shing International Investment
Company Limited. Therefore, Ms. Zhao Ying is deemed to be
interested in the 750,000,000 Shares directly held by Tai Shing
International Investment Company Limited.

(3) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,000,000,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any other
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying Shares and
ebentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
in the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which would have to be
d to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
ions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short
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BITRA - Al MEZTHEEARFTRERIE
BHMR DA E B 2750,000,0000% & 5+ & A
S o

3) B » K & R2017F12A31H B E 17 2
1,000,000,0000% fi% 15 5+ & °
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positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required to be recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons/entities (not being Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to the
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company or any other members of the Group.

%352ﬂ%$§§5ﬁ-%$ AFBE 2Bz R %
2 HIREGEM E MR BIZES.46E5.671K A g K
DRAINB R R EARE -

FERRE
ZHERK

A B 4D & #H B iR 12

K

X
B

N2
S

20175128318 HEEFA WAL/ B
(KRR EBRITHRAHBRIN) R D KA G5
FHEBBEREESFRBERDEXVEE2R3IDF
MBEXMARBEE AR S EZE M
BEHREEWNEEFNAEMAEBR TRARA KA E
BEREMKEARMBREARS ERENEMEA
AR A E{E10% 3k A E e o

Approximate

Number of percentage of

securities held shareholding

Name of Shareholder Nature of interests (Note 1) (Note 5)

HRE

FERESHE BHBE T

BREE BB ERtE (K &ET) (Bff 2£5)

Tai Shing International Beneficial owner (Note 2) 750,000,000 (L) 75%
Investment Company

Limited

FRERKRERR QA FmiEBa A (H5E2) 750,000,000 (L) 75%

Lily Charm Holding Limited Interest in a controlled Corporation (Notes 2, 3) 750,000,000 (L) 75%

Lily Charm Holding Limited wE R (M2 3) 750,000,000 (L) 75%

TMF (Cayman) Ltd. Trustee (Notes 2, 3, 4) 750,000,000 (L) 75%

TMF (Cayman) Ltd. ZFEA(FIE2 -3+ 4) 750,000,000 (L) 75%

Notes:

(1) The letter “L"” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the Shares.
(2) Tai Shing International Investment Company Limited directly holds
750,000,000 Shares of the Company.

(3) Lily Charm Holding Limited holds the entire of issued share capital of
Tai Shing International Investment Company Limited, thus Lily Charm
Holding Limited is deemed to be interested in the 750,000,000 Shares
of the Company.

() EXFEILIRFZEE/ALTRROTHIETR

o

() FRERKREABRADBEEFAE750,000,0000% A&
NGRS

(3)  Lily Charm Holding Limited# A Z= X B 5 # & A [R
RNAZ2EE BET/RA - BtLily Charm Holdin
Limited# 18 4 $750,000,000/% 78 22 =] i% 5 F #
M o
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(4) TMF (Cayman) Ltd. is on the trusts of The Hope Trust, which is a
discretionary trust set up by Ms. Zhao Ying, the chairman and non-
executive Director of the Company. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. directly holds
the entire issued share capital of Lily Charm Holding Limited.
Therefore, TMF is deemed to be interested in 750,000,000 Shares of
the Company.

(5) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,000,000,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons, except disclosed below under
"Other persons’ interests and short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company”) other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debenture of the Company and its associated corporations
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company or any other members of the Group.

Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons/entities (not being Directors or chief executive or
substantial shareholders of the Company) had, or were deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

(4)  TMF (Cayman) Ltd. &The Hope TrustZ %t A * M
The Hope Trust B A A Bl EE#IENTTESHBL
TR 2 2S5 ° TMF (Cayman) Lid HERE A
Lily Charm Holding LimitedZ & &6 £ 21T IR 74 ©
It TMF3# 4% 4 74750,000,000/% 748 A &] B 15 %
B o

(5) B » b & OR2017%F12A831H B B 17 2
1,000,000,000/% % {3 5t & »

B EXXFAEESN - 2017F128318 BT X
[ ATRARAR KN REBRG 2 ES R
BlIFHEEN EEHTIAEBTEEMAL(ERA
B EE RITBUBRER N AR R R E AR A E R
0 AR REEZTHEERNBEEEREF
5N B E GBI EXVERE2 3D BB G XA R AR T
WEZEDZNAE  RBEEARBEEF5336
BEEADSHERARRFEE B ESs ks
A EESEEEEWNERAMNATERERBRA TR
RAABRAEBIMEMKEARHRERE E
WEMEMERRAEEI0% A FfE= -

H Aty AT RAR B B R AERE A 7 2 s
Kok =

MR2017F 128310 MBS WFAL/ B8
(KRR EBRITHRAHRIN Rk D ARG
FHAERWRIEREEABREIFRBEENEXV
HE2E3DE G MARRIBEE 2 EmSAR
SR EFEH M EIEHIFE336IF BN AR RTF
BB g

Number of Percentage of

Shares held shareholding

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interests (Note 1) (Note 3)

BEROGHE BREDHK

BREREE BB BB EEEE (B &E1) (P £3)

Fairich Trading Limited Beneficial owner 99,000,000(L) 9.9%

REZZHER QA EREAA 99,000,000(L) 9.9%

Ms. Xing Junying Interest in a controlled corporation 99,000,000(L) 9.9%
(Note 2)

R+ XA B R (M 5E2) 99,000,000(L) 9.9%
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) The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the Shares.
(2) Fairich Trading Limited is directly wholly owned by Ms. Xing Junying.

(3) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,000,000,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors are
not aware of any other person or corporation other than the
Directors, the chief executive and substantial shareholders of the
Company who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debenture of the
Company and its associated corporations which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Competing Interests

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the controlling shareholder of the Company nor any of
their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have
with the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of these related party transactions were
subject to the disclosure requirements of connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Period.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands, the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, and there is no
restriction against such rights which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FY5E -

() HEXFEILIRFZER/ATRBROHEEAR -

2 REEFERAAAMERZLIERZEHRS -
El

o b % R2017F12A8310 B B 17 2
1,000,000,0000% % 15 51 & °

@)

B EXXFREESN - 20175128318  EEHT
MBEBETMEMALTHRAR(KRAESE  1THAE
HEETEREBRIN RARR REBE EZEERG
RN REREFEEREERBEREESFL
HA G5B EEXVER B2 3D SIS B M A R B &
ZHREETBORRE IR EES R E KN F3361578
RERARRGFE 2B RMzERSS AR -

i E MR =S

BERAME  BHE2017F12A31HIEFE - AR
AESERERBRREULRFESSAEMNETHEA(E
#£ R GEM_E R RI) % A B K 5 B 3 15 5 55 5 7] A2
BHENTNEBIRNZSEBTEEER  TE
HAREBE BTG E R =& -

BHEXZRBEIRS

REBERT2017F12A3BLEEZHERLS
HRAHVERRMEN - MEZSHEILH
BIFEGEMETRAEETHER I BEBRER
SEBEHRT

EEEN

RAHE MEJVAFETMNESARR2EX
EREREBHEO 2EERITHAEL -

BERBERE
ARRABERMAKM 2B (KRR MR
2 AARE) IR A B A B R O
B MR SRR 2 AT - B IR D AR D)
MEREREIES EEHRG -
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors are entitled to
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of their duty in their respective offices, provided
that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to such Director. The
Company has purchased and maintained Directors’ liability insurance
during the year under review, which provides appropriate coverage
for the Directors.

Equity-Linked Agreement

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Environment Policy

The Company is committed to support environmental sustainability.
The Company encourages environmental protection and adheres to
the principle of recycling and reducing, including encouraging
double-sided printing and copying, setting up recycling bins,
promoting using recycled paper and reducing energy consumption by
switching off idle lightings and electrical appliance. The Company
will review its environmental practices from time to time and will
consider implementing further eco-friendly measures in the operation
of the Group’s businesses. The Company will publish its
environmental, social and governance report on an annual basis in
accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

Sufficient Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company's issued shares as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH XK HZEHEREKERNLE R
ACTUAL BUSIENSS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the RERERFHAEXFBAEEAEEE T EHPE
Prospectus with the Group’s actual business progress for the period 2017812831 B BN BEEEKER LB 2 DT

from the listing date to 31 December 2017 is set out below: HymT
Implementation plan up Actual business progress up
Objects to 31 December 2017 to 31 December 2017
B Z2017F B ZE2017F
B & 12A31MBNER S NANBNERELER

Strengthening our market position Upgrading the main entrance area and western Upgrade for the main entrance of

in Langfang internal road of our cemetery the cemetery is underway, while
2 [E R RR B ) T 35 3 2 AREREACDRERAEBE that of the western internal road
is completed
%I‘I)\Dﬂi&ﬁéﬁ?ﬂﬂ ' PHE
[ %EX
Purchasing and upgrading our current facilities ~ Purchased lawn mowers and
and machineries (such as waste incinerators watering cart; purchased and
and lawn mowers) for gardening and installed incinerators
interment rituals EEBEERNEH  ZKE: WL

REERZEBEAFERTTREDRICER BERLZREREE
BEHREHRARE R R

Commencing the development of the “Rose” Not developed yet
Garden R
FinAEAZEE]
Designing family graves Designed family graves and other
RETRES types of graves
ERERAREEREMER

Maintaining and expanding our cooperation with Expanded our cooperation with

local funeral services providers and local funeral services providers
promoting our brand awareness with with three new advertisement
new advertisement boards. boards in stores
HRELMBEEMEERGHEEETNSIELN DREREZSHBEERRGHEEDN
AT BE &5 R S 1E b S MAFPIEESR=
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Implementation plan up Actual business progress up
Objects to 31 December 2017 to 31 December 2017
BZ2017F BZ2017F
B 12A31BEWERE 1ANBNEREBER
Expanding our business scope to  Locating, leasing, designing and decorating Plans to lease premises related to
provide funeral services premises for the operation of funeral services Langfang Funeral Home,
BARESESHE  REBEERS W HA- REARESCHIESERERBEDN cooperates with the funeral
i home in commencing related

funeral services, and at the same
time seeks for premises for the
construction of [ Wantong
Funeral Hall |, providing full
range services for the funeral
market in Langfang
ZLHEBMMABRENHBS
i HERESIERRIBHER
RS - AR ES KIS ERR
(BREREE)E T MRS TS

BT
Commencing the business of our funeral Completed the construction of
services funeral hall, and is currently
F 6 He (L 7B 18 IR 75 improving the interment ritual
services
EREERERTHK  WIEERHA
7 R R
Purchasing funeral vehicles Has applied for vehicles and is
BEEFEER waiting for approval

EWMEKEHFE LEERLET

Recruiting and training ten funeral services staff Manager of the funeral service
BELREINT+EBEERBAE centre has taken up the post in
April, and we are recruiting for
the other staff
BERBHOEBEARIAG A
B AEEABLEEREES
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EEgWRE
Implementation plan up Actual business progress up
Objects to 31 December 2017 to 31 December 2017
HZE2017F BZ2017F
B 12A31BEWERE NRAMBNEREXKER
Tapping further into the burial Liaising and cooperating with more Beijing- The marketing director has taken
market in the Jing-Jin-Ji based funeral services providers and up the post, and we have
megalopolis & pursuing mortuaries recruited a dedicated staff
strategic alliance and acquisition 8 £t REERBEHER LA FERAAKR specialized in the market channel
opportunities a1E of Beijing. Active promotion is in

RABRR EZENTEAEZET
B FREKBEERNERS

On-site promotion in Beijing
FIEETEMEE

progress to build sales and
promotion system. We will recruit
three additional staff dedicated
to serve the funeral service
distributors in the market
channel of Beijing
EIHAEAR UTHEBTI1EEE
AL RRET SN ERAE » IE
FEETERERE KEHEERE
BE REKFEMEFEEA
8 BRBIERBERBREER

Four shops are confirmed to
cooperate, and we are
negotiating with various parties

BETENRERAIE SHEZEE
e 8 B

Preliminary site visiting and investigating several Conducted site visits to projects in
potential targets for acquisition, if there various regions like Beijing,

would be any suitable ones

Tianjin, Hebei, etc. One to three

HZEcEKEERETRS2EBLAS projects are selected for the

(MEALEBE)

further investigations
%"Ht? KA AL E % fEi R I8
ETERRAURRISZ2H
% BB TR3MEE B EEETT
T—FHREIIE

Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering

Since the date of Listing and up to 31 December 2017, the net
proceeds has not been applied to any uses according to the
Prospectus. After the reporting period and up to the date of this
report, the Company has performed the preliminary site visiting and
research for some potential acquisition opportunities for the purpose
of pursuing strategic alliance and acquisition opportunities according
to the future plans under the Prospectus, and it is in a preliminary
stage that no agreement has been entered yet.

ZRBERSBSREAHRE
B ETBEE2017F12A318  FIBREFEL
FARBRERMMATMNAR HEHBERESR
RFEBH ARAERETEBEERBEHSHET
MPEMBRRFE EERBERBRERANZE
R EFIBEEBERKELKE  BEERVL
B BR R 1) R 5T S (E ) 155 5% ©
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An analysis of the utilization of the net proceeds from the listing
date up to 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Planned use of
net proceeds as
stated in the
Prospectus up to
December 2017

FTTMBHEEE2017F12A31B 8 A ATE RIAF 5
ZAWMEI W

Actual use of
net proceeds
up to
December 2017

B ZE2017F

12A31H B ZE2017F
RERERFR 12H31H
FBREFEEz: FMEXREFEZ
RERZ ERAZ
RMB RMB
AR AR
Strengthening our market position in 2 E R R Y T 5 L 3.8 million 3.8 million
Langfang 3.8B8TT 3.8B8HT
Expanding our business scope to provide 1B A& @ I2MHEERS 4.0 million 0.07 million
funeral services 4.0887T 0.07E& T

Tapping further into the burial market FRAERRREATEEETS -

in the Jing-Jin-Ji megalopolis & FHEEEERNERS

pursuing strategic alliance and 0.4 million 0.12 million
acquisition opportunities 0488 T 0.12BE& T

Interests of the Compliance Adviser

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed Innovax Capital Limited (“Innovax Capital”)
to be the compliance adviser. As informed by Innovax Capital,
neither Innovax Capital nor any of its directors or employees or
associates, has or may have, any interest in the share capital of the
Company or any member of the Group (including options or rights
to subscribe for such securities), which is required to be notified to
the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules,
except for the compliance adviser agreement entered into between
the Company and Innovax Capital dated 28 March 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWE

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment, at the forthcoming AGM.

Events occurred since the end of the financial year

There was no other significant events that might affect the Group
since the end of the Year 31 December 2017.

By order of the Board

Li Xingying
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B &% A RS

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA WAN TONG YUAN
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Wan
Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 124,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZBE RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA WAN TONG YUAN
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

B oh A (B2 R) PR A E MR R ()
(REESREIMR I ERAF)
FEREETEE®

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRENEE EENESTNMAEERRETSE

Revenue recognition for sales of burial

plots

EMEHENRARE

We identified the revenue from sales of Our procedures in relation to revenue from sales of burial plot included:
burial plots as a key audit matter due to EZEHRKEEMHEENRAFTETHEREFBE

the significance of the amount and volume
of sales transactions recognised during the
year.
EERREEMEENRARE A —THH
REAFE HOHERFARINEER
HeRNMBBEERK-

Details of revenue from sales of burial
plots are set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.
REEHMBEENREFBERNE TR
FMFEe -

Evaluating design and implementation of internal control relevant to
the sale of burial plot.

AR E N NIRRT RET

Selecting burial plot sales transactions on a sample basis and:
MEERBEMHER S K

—  reading the signed sales and purchase agreements to understand
the relevant terms in determining when the right to use burial
plots has passed to customers.

— I?L BEEEINEEDE AN THAUETEMERAER

REPHHRR -

o] B 4

—  obtaining evidence regarding the passing of the right to use burial
plots to customers.

— CEHEHEREERTEPNER -

— reconciling the amounts of recorded transactions and related
receipts to the signed sales and purchase agreements of sales of
burial plots.

— HBEARXRSNSBACRITEMHERERHS

TTHER -

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

1B BRI

H@%E

AREEBEY LSS FEEE LM E0E
%ﬁ?iﬁmﬁﬁ'WKE%éﬁW%ﬁ%&ﬁ
Ll EER

T—I?%Téﬁﬁ?ﬁ%#&%{”ﬁﬁﬂﬁ R R E E AR (E
EETEHHEMEEBEREATANRE

RESEFEHYBHRRME  BFENEEAH
HEMER MEEEMESEESETES HMG
BRABEEERBREPER E’]ﬁﬂfﬁiﬁW
oK UFFEERERRL - W5 %E"Ei&
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
¥ 3L A% BN

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA WAN TONG YUAN
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZBE RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA WAN TONG YUAN
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

BrEERE(ZER)ARIAKRRE(E)
(RHASHSEMKILZBRRA)

REBMHREBERSHYBERRAAE
&= FE )

ERZ R E JEW&%%V&@&¢ BEE
REXAE REBREXEREE -BF:

. B M E BN ERME ﬁAHW%
BREFESAERRANRER  ReT RBIT
%V&FME%&?H@ A K 7 B 78 /2 A

ENEFER FREFEANER - /&
K%MT e hBRR BE ERER E
BRER o B N RPESE M B0 - F bt R BE %
ﬁlﬁmﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂk

BE B IR #8 AR T B BB K #E R PR 1 [l B

. THRERGTHEBONIEE  URTEED
ERERF EAFEES %%@W%Tﬂ
MBERMEERSR -

. AHEEEMEAS S BRMNRE M REH
SRR MAARAEKENSEME -

. HEERAUFELERERNSFHENR
BUHELER  URIEMERNETER
MERAFEESHEIBEREHENEATE
EM - HMAEERY SEENFELE
RNELEBEARE - WESRAFEEAT
MEW AAVEERBMBERREFIE
éﬁ%ﬁﬁ%¢%ﬁ%ﬁ% BALEN kS
TR AMERTE BER-BEMNEWINE
Fﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂtﬁﬂ M &R

oA AREERBAATELER BE
@ﬁ%%fw“°

. ﬁﬁAﬁWWﬁ%m%%%ﬁﬁﬁ EE K
R BEEEAR M&Amﬁﬁ =~
T$ﬁ&%ﬁ%&%ﬂ$ﬁ°

. RERBANBERBAXB RS EEFEE
7t e K E m%ﬁ B ABEHE MM
RERE E8R I%ﬁmﬁﬁ
BRBT o Eﬂ BERAEER

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F %




58

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
¥ 3L A% BN

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA WAN TONG YUAN
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Yam Siu Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EmREMEE RS X

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L FE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12AMBLEE

2017 2016

20175 2016%F

NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000

Mo 5E AR¥ T AR T

Revenue I = 6 38,617 31,179

Cost of sales and services HE KR A (7,000) (5,545)

Gross profit EH 31,617 25,634

Other income E g A 7 4,418 7,620

Other losses H i iE 7A (395) —
Gain on fair value change KEMELNFEED

of investment properties W 5 15 140 140

Distribution and selling expenses DI REERE (4,641) (3,744)

Administrative expenses THRHAX (3.247) (2,749)

Initial public offering expenses BARARBERE (13,997) (1,429)

Finance costs B & B AR 8 = (4,756)

Profit before taxation B B4 A S A 9 13,895 20,716

Income tax expense FriSHi & 11 (6,772) (4,523)
Profit and total comprehensive income KAE B ANERTF
for the year attributable to owners A A K 2 A

of the Company 4858 7,123 16,193

Earnings per share Tk & A
Basic (RMB) ERARY) 12 0.009 0.022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B O B ik R &

At 31 December 2017 #2017 12A31H

At 31 December

®W12A318
2017 2016
201745 20164
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
Mo 5E AR® T AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property and equipment MEKEE 14 2,631 2,438
Investment properties wEWE 15 5,410 5,270
Cemetery assets EREE 16 9,092 6,761
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 17 71,300 53,000
88,433 67,469
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories FE 19 3,537 5,501
Prepayments and other receivables T8 - FIE [ H A FE U
FKIA 20 312 5,747
Amounts due from related parties JRE Uit B8 Bt U7 3RIE 32(a) 2,058 —
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 21 81,720 57,091
87,627 68,339
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & HE AR RIE 22 21,185 30,909
Amount due to a related party FE S BB 5 R0E 32(b) 752 —
Deferred income BT WA 23 3,220 2,962
Income tax payable B ETER 11,679 7,419
36,836 41,290
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 50,791 27,049
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRDER
LIABILITIES 139,224 94,518

60

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # B & 1 & (%) B R 2 7]



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
& Ot B B AR &

At 31 December 2017 520174128318

At 31 December

MW12A831H
2017 2016
20175 20164
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo 5E AR¥ T AR T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kFRBEE
Deferred income IE T U A 23 48,487 39,295
Deferred tax liabilities REFHEAE 18 2,310 75
50,797 39,370
NET ASSETS EEFE 88,427 55,148
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRHE
Share capital % A% 25 66,192 32,000
Reserves & 26 22,235 23,148
Equity attributable to owners KRAREEAELER
of the Company 88,427 55,148
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 88,427 55,148

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 124 were H 5598 21248 i) & B 15 3 & £ 7£201843 A
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21AREZEFHR L EEET UM TIEER

21 March 2018 and signed on its behalf by: =z
Li Xingying Huang Guangming R HEH
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR EBEF BZE

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 £% 61



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SO ERED®

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &, Z2017F12A318 IEF[E

62

Attributable to owners of the Company

AKAREEAEMN
Statutory
Share Share surplus Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserves earnings Total
B A< B AR E a2 Hif#EHE REEF Wi
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
R¥ETT ARBETRT ARBTTT R¥ETT ARKETRT ARBTT
At 1 January 2016 2016F1A1H 32,000 — 696 — 6,259 38,955
Profit and total F N &
comprehensive income THEHWAETE
for the year — — — — 16,193 16,193
Transfer to reserves EEHE — — 1,619 — (1,619) —
At 31 December 2016 2016%F12A31H 32,000 — 2,315 — 20,833 55,148
Profit and total F A F & 2 W
comprehensive income A##E
for the year — — — — 7,123 7,123
Issue of share capital of BITARABRA
the Company (note 25) (Mt 5F25) 1 — — — — 1
Issue of new shares to MAREITIHRD
the public (note 25) (W i£25) 16,548 42,760 — — — 59,308
Transaction costs %17 5 i m AR FE AL
attributable to issue of X%W$
new ordinary shares — (7,485) — — — (7,485)
Capitalisation issue of EARBEITIRGD
shares (note 25) (P 5£25) 49,643 (35,275) — (5,023) (9,345) —
Transfer to reserves [y — — 1,728 — (1,728) —
Deemed distribution WRAED IR (M 7Ea)
(note a) (32,000) — — (23,500) — (55,500)
Wavier of debt owed to REBERTIREL
Mr. Wang Jingjun A EE (F5Eb)
(note b) — — — 32,500 — 32,500
Tax charge on the wavier RETEELEH
from Mr. Wang Jianjun B IEX
(note b) (4 5Eb) — — — (8,125) — (8,125)
Wavier of debt owed to MEAREBELL
Ms. Zhao Ying (note b) &8 (Ff5Eb) — — — 5,457 — 5,457
At 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H 66,192 = 4,043 1,309 16,883 88,427
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
R TE

Sad

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 L F[E

Notes:

During the year ended 31 December 2017, as part of the Reorganisation
(as defined in note 2), Langfang Wantongyuan Corporation
Management Co., Ltd. (“Wantongyuan Management”, a subsidiary of
China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)) entered
into an acquisition agreement to acquire the entire equity interest in
Langfang Wantong Cemetery Co., Ltd. (“Langfang Wantong”) from the
original shareholders of Langfang Wantong for a cash consideration of
RMB55,500,000 which was accounted for as a deemed distribution.

On 30 August 2017, Mr. Wang Jianjun, the husband of Ms. Zhao Ying
who is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company (see note
1), agreed to waive an amount of RMB32,500,000 payable to him by
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) which was accounted
for as a deemed contribution to the Group. This deemed contribution
is subject to a tax charge of approximately RMBS8,125,000. On
7 September 2017, Ms. Zhao Ying agreed to waive the amounts of
RMB5,023,000 and RMB434,000 payable to her by the Company and
Wantong (HK) Company Limited (“Wantong HK”, a subsidiary of the
Company) respectively, which were accounted for as deemed
contributions to the Group. As the Company is incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and Wantong HK is incorporated in Hong Kong, the
Group is not subject to tax on the waiver of the aforesaid payable to
Ms. Zhao Ying.

GEE

(a)

(b)

HZE2017F12A31BLEE  FASHE(EERN
HO)M—Bo BHERECEEEHRAQA
(IBRMEER] PRBRE (2R AR QA (AR
AANHMB AR T WEHE  UWBESREA
R ¥55,500,0007T (P {EAR 1E D IR) MBS T B A
EERAG (Y ER]) R E U BT &R
2 EBR%HE o

201748 A308 « AR A & &K= BRI R (R K &
NDHAZTHLXTREXERBERERNQAR
EMBAR(ASEDER FHEZHREBEBARYE
32,500,0007T * W #E B VERVE) T AR AL M - ZB5E
AR VBT E B B IE B A 49 A R %8,125,0007T ©
M2017F9A7H  BEBEXLTRAEREARBIRLE
WEB)BRAR (KRR ZHBRARER(E
7)) 2 RIFER T 1% 8 518 A R #65,023,0000T & A
R #434,0007T - WK IIERIEZTERAEE - A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &, Z2017F12A318 IEF[E

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLEE

2017 2016
201745 20164
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T ARBFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETFEH
Profit before taxation B % B & A 13,895 20,716
Adjustments for: BT HFEEL A
Interest income FLEMA 7 (628) (4,790)
Dividend income from available-for-sale @] fff £ &% & 1A B
investments LN 7 (3,600) (2,640)
Depreciation of property and MEREBEBITE
equipment 14 402 349
Amortisation of cemetery assets HE & E#H 16 250 215
Gain on fair value change of investment &K&W EANFEE
properties I &5 15 (140) (140)
Finance costs Bl & A 8 — 4,756
Operating cash flows before movements  &iE& & ZHFIH
in working capital KEaReRE 10,179 18,466
Increase in cemetery assets HE B E N (2,581) (227)
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,964 630
Decrease (increase) in prepayments and B FIE & H g UL
other receivables FIER A () 751 (577)
Decrease in advance from customers BREBFH D (11,862) (2,946)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 Rk EAhFER FRIA
#n 2,138 1,048
Increase in deferred income iR RE YT A S8 A 9,450 5,196
Cash generated from operations KEMBRS 10,039 21,590
Income tax paid ERER (8,402) (397)
Net cash generated from operating KEZBAEEHESF
activities i) 1,637 21,193
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
afftReREx

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

Year ended 31 December

BENAMMBLEE
2017 2016
201745 20164
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
B & AR® TR AREETF T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Purchase of property and equipment BEMEREB (595) (101)
Loan receivables, staff loan and other EREF BEIBER
receivables made Ko H A FE W 5k 18 — (52,271)
Repayment of loan receivables, staff BEEKER BT
loan and other receivables B3k K H A FE U SR
A 4,684 141,479
Interest received =R &R 628 4,790
Dividend income received from AHEERENR S
available-for-sale investments PN 3,600 2,640
Addition to available-for-sale BAHLERE
investments (18,300) —
Repayment from related parties A T B K = 9,761
Advance to a related party KT BT (2,057) —
Net cash (used in) generated from wEREY (TR MER
investing activities ®FH (12,040) 106,298
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEFED
Advance from related parties 8 Bk 7 B R 54,711 —
Repayment to related parties BRT AL (16,002) —
Issue of share capital of the Company BITARRARAR 59,308 —
Arising from Reorganisation KEEHA (55,500) —
Payment on transaction costs BTN B2 5
attributable to issue of new shares BCA A 3R (7,485) —
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBITERK — (77,000)
Interest paid =ESEURSS — (4,756)
Net cash generated from (used in) BMEEEME PRI
financing activities & 55 35,032 (81,756)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR& NMIR& EBEWIE N
b 24,629 45,735
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F#E & LKREEEY
the year 57,091 11,356
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRARITHEARRIRE
the year represented by bank balances HEMRe MReE
and cash BY 81,720 57,

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 €% 65



66

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B O BF 55 3R M a

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &, Z2017F12A318 IEF[E

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated and registered in the Cayman
Islands on 25 January 2017 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company have been listed on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) on 27 September 2017. The address of the
registered office of the Company is 2" Floor, the Grand
Pavilion Commercial Centre, 802 West Bay Road, P.O. Box
10338, Grand Cayman KY1-1003, Cayman Islands. The address
of its principal place of business is Baganqu North, Economic
and Technological Development Area, Langfang, Hebei, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The principal activity
of the Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries are
primarily engaged in the sale of burial plots, provision of other
burial-related services and provision of cemetery maintenance
services.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding
company of the Company is Tai Shing International Investment
Company Limited (“Tai Shing International”), a company which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is
ultimately controlled by Ms. Zhao Ying (the "Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") which is also the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (‘000) unless otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Reorganisation

Historically, during the current and prior years and before and

after the group reorganisation (the

“Reorganisation”),

Langfang Wantong, the operating subsidiary of the Group, is
controlled by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder.

In preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the

GEM of the Stock Exchange (the

“Listing”), the companies

now comprising the Group underwent the Reorganisation as
described below.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 18 January 2017, Wantong HK was incorporated in
Hong Kong. One share was allotted and issued to the
initial subscriber, an independent third party, and then
transferred to the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder on
25 January 2017.

On 25 January 2017, the Company was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with an authorised share capital of
United States Dollar (“US$")500, consisting of 50,000
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each. One share was allotted
and issued to the initial subscriber, an independent third
party, and then transferred to Tai Shing International on
1 February 2017. On 1 February 2017, the Company
issued and allotted an additional 9,999 ordinary shares,
credited as fully paid, to Tai Shing International at par
value.

On 27 January 2017, Shing Sheng International Limited
("Shing Sheng International”) was incorporated in the
BVI as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. On
2 February 2017, Ms. Zhao Ying transferred her entire
equity interests in Wantong HK to Shing Sheng
International at consideration of Hong Kong Dollar
("HK$")1. Accordingly, Wantong HK became the wholly
owned subsidiary of Shing Sheng International on
2 February 2017.

On 1 February 2017, Tai Shing International was
incorporated by Ms. Zhao Ying in the BVI.

On 2 March 2017, Wantongyuan Management was
established as a wholly owned subsidiary of Wantong
HK.

2EIEE

B54H

BE REAFERBEFEARKAEEEA
(TERADHEK AEELERBRRELE
AR B AR AR AR AR IR PR )

)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BARA RN RZXAGEM E™ ([ L
CAEEBABETARSET VAER -

201751188 B (FH) L& B
A e — R BB R BT TR
FE=FVIEREA - ER2017F1H25
AEETREITERAE -

2017F1A258 A AREHEHSET
it B¢ 320 Sk F B AR A500%FE JT ([ E
Jtl) 9 /50,000 & % E{H0.013E 7T
VE B —IRIRMDBLE RETTE
I%*ﬁfmu%,ﬁ%)\ %120174%2 A
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%c
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

The Reorganisation (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

On 14 March 2017, Wantongyuan Management acquired
the entire equity interest in Langfang Wantong from its
equity shareholders with an aggregated cash
consideration of RMB55,500,000. Accordingly, Langfang
Wantong became the wholly owned subsidiary of
Wantongyuan Management.

On 18 August 2017, Mr. Wang Jianjun, the husband of
Ms. Zhao Ying, provided a loan amounting to
RMB46,835,000 to the Group to settle the consideration
payable for the acquisition of Langfang Wantong.

On 21 August 2017 and on 28 August 2017,
Wantongyuan Management repaid an aggregate amount
of RMB55,500,000 to the previous equity shareholders of
Langfang Wantong to fully settle the outstanding
consideration for the acquisition of Langfang Wantong.

On 30 August 2017, Mr. Wang Jianjun agreed to waive
an amount of RMB32,500,000 payable to him by the
Group which was accounted for as a deemed
contribution to the Group.

Upon the completion of the Reorganisation on 14 March
2017, the Company became the holding company of the
subsidiaries now comprising the Group.

As detailed above, the Reorganisation involves interspersing

shell

companies (including the Company, Shing Sheng

International, Wantong HK and Wantongyuan Management)
between Langfang Wantong, the Group’s operating subsidiary,
and its shareholders. Accordingly, the consolidated statements
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements
of cash flows for the years of 2016 and 2017 include the
companies now comprising the Group as if the current group
structure had been in existence and remained unchanged
throughout the years of 2016 and 2017 or since their
respective dates of incorporation or establishment where there
is a shorter period. The consolidated statement of financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 has been
prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the companies

now comprising the Group, as if the current group structure
had been in existence at that date taking into account the
respective dates of incorporation or establishment, where
applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has consistently applied International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”), IFRSs, amendments and interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") which are effective for the Group’s financial year
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beginning on 1 January 2017 for both current and prior years.

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRS 16
IFRS 17
IFRIC 22
IFRIC 23

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28
Amendments to IAS 19
Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 40

Amendments to IFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual
Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2014-2016 Cycle’

Transtfers of Investment
Property’

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2015-2017 Cycle?

E BB R R A #R] R ERT B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Except for the new IFRSs mentioned below, the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to IFRSs and Interpretations
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other financial
assets are measured at their fair value at subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("|FRSS") (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Based on the Group’s financial

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

instruments and risk

management policies as at 31 December 2017, the Directors
anticipate the following potential impact on initial application
of IFRS 9:

Classification and measurement

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale investments
carried at cost less impairment as disclosed in note 17:
these securities qualified for designation as measured at
FVTOCI under IFRS 9, however, the Group plans not to
elect the option for designating these securities to be
measured at FVTOCI and will measure these securities at
fair value with subsequent fair value gains or losses to
be recognised in profit or loss. Upon initial application of
IFRS 9, fair value gains related to these securities,
representing the differences between cost less
impairment and fair value would be adjusted to retained
earnings as at 1 January 2018 and deferred tax liabilities
at 1 January 2018 would be increased with a
corresponding deferred tax charged to retained earnings
as at 1 January 2018.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are
currently measured under IAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("|FRSS") (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Impairment

In general, the Directors anticipate that the application of the
expected credit loss model of IFRS 9 will result in earlier
provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised costs
and other items that subject to the impairment provisions
upon application of IFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the Directors, if the expected
credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised by
Group as at 1 January 2018 would remain unchanged as
compared to the accumulated amount recognised under IAS
39.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18
Revenue, |IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a
5-step approach to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies

a performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. FAIREETERNHRSEE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING Bz (BRMBEHREE

STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (continued) EIEMIE)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers R B EERBISRE LA AN

(continued) 7 (48)

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a RIBEER S BREERF159: B EEBTS

performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the EBHBREARERKE B ERNETIEE

goods or services underlying the particular performance EmERBENIEHEISEEE PR - BER

obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive HMEEEBISHENMAE AREHIESIIA

guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific BRIBRERIE A o Lo - BRI S 2R

scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by 1SRN E K EZ MR -

IFRS 15.

In 2016, the IASB issued Clarification to IFRS 15 in relation to 20165 @ B @ AR S g MM BIR I %

the identification of performance obligations, principal versus WMELERIBISHE BB NABHREBHNR

agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance. FRER  FEFEARRBAREMRBAE
3l

The Directors anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 in the ERTETHEERRR Y 5w ERE155%

future may result in more disclosures, however, the Directors AL EHMEFHESHE WEEFENER

do not anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 will have a BRI S EEE ISR T e W aEa@mE

material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue HERRARENSRRSEELEEATLE -

recognised in the respective reporting periods.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BREFHRE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties which
are measured at fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS
2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 /mpairment of assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:
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. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active . E—RRABBRAEEAINGEAE
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity SHHERANEEXNBEREGREMSEHN

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:
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involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary is included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, when it is probable that the future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met each of the Group’s activities as
described below.

The Group enters into contracts with its customers for the
provision of burial services, which include the sale of burial
plots and cemetery maintenance services.

Revenue from the sale of burial plots is recognised when the
right to use burial plots has passed, at which time all the
following conditions have been satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of the burial plots;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the burial plots

sold;
o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with

the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the provision of cemetery maintenance services
is deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over the
remaining service period. The contract price for the cemetery
maintenance services represents the fair value of such services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit scheme are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when the employee rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
IFRS requires or permits inclusion of the benefit in the cost of
an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Cemetery assets

Cemetery assets consist of prepaid lease payments, cost of
initial land development, and cost of landscaping for the
general public areas of the cemetery and are carried at the
lower of costs less accumulated amortisation and net realisable
value prior to the commencement of development of the
cemetery. Amortisation for cemetery assets is provided on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the
cemetery assets and is recognised in profit or loss.

Upon commencement of development of the cemetery with
the intention of sale in the ordinary course of business of the
Group, the related carrying amounts of cemetery assets are
transferred to inventories.

Inventories

Inventories include cemetery assets developed and ready for
sale, cemetery assets under development, and tombstones and
urns. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a settlement date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including loan receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from related parties and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for the
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonable assessed and used in
estimating fair value are stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
J breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as loan
receivables, other receivables, that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loan receivables and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instruments is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amount
due to a related party and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are as follows:

Investment properties

Investment properties were stated at fair values based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair values, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain assumptions and
estimates of market condition. In relying on the valuation
report, the Directors have exercised their judgment and are
satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation are
reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in profit or
loss.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at
31 December 2017 was RMB5,410,000 (31 December 2016:
RMBS5,270,000). More details are set out in note 15.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # B & 1 & (%) B R 2 7]

A A EREERZNEZRIR

J& PR B Skapr AN 5 B A & AT BURES - B
EARCEMIEITEMBANEERAE
ARTENE {F B (AT RRER o fhat R AE RS
F“Mﬂ&%& BRABNEBRRAE
it - BIRAERATEBNNZFMHET -

At REERREFERS - MEFHEFHE
FIEREZHRE  BBBETERNMER fhEt
R - WERERTEEH  ToE
RRHME - AARERT @M R BIRE KA K
IR -

BEREHRSIBEERBEREAEBEET —
HEENEEARABRBRABBAAKRNETIE
B M H = 2MEE T EEEEZRIRET

BEWE

BREMERBBIEXHEMOBERZRF
BEFIER - EMERNS RETHRERE LG
AHBETAEE R TE EFKBEMHER
EELHE - EREEMANRKRERRE
MR- ZEBREPEEHAEEREY
ERTEEZHLEEMERVELEESHE
GEVCELE-

R2017F12A310  WEWENREBEAA
R #5,410,0007T (201651283180 : A R ¥
5,270,0007T) ° FF 15 H R M FE15 ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R EsE ik

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL 6. WERDHEH

INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the REERBEXELEARE (REBTER
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision makers, BERTEHBALTUEERS ERERLEER
including Ms. Li Xingying, the general manager of Langfang BT EMRBPELE) (GBI EE2LER
Wantong, Mr. Huang Guangming and Mr. Yu Minghua, the REDMEZAMELEBBARNORSEET
deputy general managers o Langfang Wantong (collectively, "MEDH - SR TEELERRENERE
the CODM"), that are used to make strategic decisions. RAEB MRS RRENERKRSEL -

Information reported to the CODM is based on the products
and services delivered or provided by the Group.

The Group's operating and reporting segments are (i) sales of REENKERERIBREERBENHEEER
burial plots and provision of other burial-related services; and i Rt Efh B BB AR 7S - (iR EER
(i) provision of cemetery maintenance services in the PRC. #e AR o

Segment revenue and results 7 EB U e AR

Year ended 31 December 2017 Bt Z20174F12H31H 1F F/&

Sales of burial
plots and Provision of
provision of cemetery
other burial- maintenance
related services services

HEEHR
RAEHtbE M RHEER
1 B R 7% 4 8 IR 25 Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR TR AR TR

Segment revenue ban= & 35,566 3,051 38,617
Segment results D EBEE 29,187 2,430 31,617
Other income HAth U A 4,418
Other losses HthE1E (395)
Gain on fair value change of KEWERATEES

investment properties g 140
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERX (4,641)
Administrative expenses TR X (3,247)
Initial public offering expenses BERAARBEERY (13,997)

Profit before taxation & 5 A 13,895
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

90

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.
Segment results represent the gross profit attributable to each
segment. This is the measure reported to the Group’s CODM
for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment. There were no inter-segment revenue during the
current and prior years. No analysis of segment assets and
liabilities is presented as it is not regularly reviewed by the
Group’s CODM.

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue is generated from sale of burial
plots and provision of other burial-related services, and
provision of cemetery maintenance services in the PRC based
on where goods are sold or services are rendered, and
substantially all of the Group’s identifiable assets and liabilities
are located in the PRC.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL 6. WEKDTHBER =
INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016 BLE20169F12H31H 1EF/E

Sales of burial Provision of

plots and provision cemetery

of other burial- maintenance
related services services Total

HEEH R

REEMEM REEE
RS wERY st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
Segment revenue 7 7P & 28,531 2,648 31,179
Segment results DEBELE 23,404 2,230 25,634
Other income =N 7,620

Gain on fair value change of REME

investment properties NTEZHN 140
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERX (3,744)
Administrative expenses THHX (2,749)
Initial public offering expenses BRARBEERX (1,429)
Finance costs b & AR (4,756)
Profit before taxation B B A1 i 20,716
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

No single customer accounted for 10% or more of the
Group's revenue for 2017 (2016: nil).

The Group's revenue for the year was derived from various
products and services provided by the Group. The details are
as follows:

Wz koHER @
FERFER

20174 EE —FEHAREBEIRZEN
10% 3k A F (20164 « &) -
REBRZEFENRDZRAANEBREN
ZEEMRRE - FHOT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLLEE
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARET T
Sale of burial plots SHE E i 32,170 25,994

Other burial-related services H B 0 48 B AR 7%

(note) (B 5%) 3,396 2,537
Cemetery maintenance services BEEHEERE 3,051 2,648
38,617 31,179

Note: Other burial-related services represented revenues from
miscellaneous services such as the organisation and conducting
of burial rituals, the design and landscaping of the burial sites
and additional engraving fees.

Revenue derived from sales of burial plots is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
discount, and revenue derived from sales of the burial plots
and provision of cemetery maintenance services are exempt
from business tax and value added tax.

Mt HMEmAEREEREMEBERE DK
= MARRETERESN BRI RR
B E MBI ZIER -

EHEEENRAERERHERRENH R
FEGIGRTHGE  BEERREH‘RER
MERBEENRABABMNEERRIEE
i o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 % 91



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& Ot 1S AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

7. OTHER INCOME

7. HKA

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARETF T
Interest income on bank deposits AT A E A 628 34
Interest income on loan receivables B W B SRR B A — 4,756

Dividend income from available-for-sale AHEERENKE

investments 'ON 3,600 2,640
Rental income el A 190 190
4,418 7,620

7A. OTHER LOSSES

7A. HfL g8

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLLEE

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBETF T

Foreign exchange loss, net

S 5 1R % B (395) —

92

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # B & 1 & (%) B R 2 7]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. mEMX
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLEE

2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt ARET T
Interests on bank borrowings HRATERFE = 4,756

B Bt Al 28 A

B 50 A a8 A4S N BR A T 508

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9.

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T AR T
Auditors’ remuneration % EAN B & 870 20
Depreciation of property and equipment MEREBBEITE 402 349
Amortisation of cemetery assets EREEHE(BE
(included in cost of sales and services) $HE KRR A) 250 215
Total depreciation and amortisation mEREHEBE 652 564
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BRAEAINFERR 5,382 4,665
Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration BETITA  BiEE S
(note 10): & (MfsE10) -
Salaries, wages and other benefits H2 IER
H 42 A 2,988 2,526
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RORAE F B R 475 490
Total staff costs @8 TR 3,463 3,016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE'S
EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

Ms. Li Xingying and Mr. Huang Guangming were
appointed as Directors on 21 March 2017. Ms. Zhao
Ying was appointed as a Director on 25 January 2017
and was designated as a non-executive director on
21 March 2017. Ms. Li Xingying is also the general
manager of Langfang Wantong. Mr. Choi Hon Keung,
Simon, Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert and Mr. Cheung
Ying Kwan were appointed as independent non-
executive directors on 7 September 2017.

The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors
(including emoluments for their services as employee/
directors of subsidiaries prior to becoming the Directors)
by entities comprising the Group during the current and
last year are as follows:

10. EEREEEH N

(a)

= = H
FHBLZTREEREENR2017F3A
QIREZTAES MEBELZLIRN
2017F1ABEZEREF IR
201793 R21 B #ETFE ABIERITES -
TEAR TN ARG BRI BLRE-
BEOEgA A FAEETRKRERT
HR2017F9R7R R T BB IEH
TESE-

RAFERE-FE RAKEBET
BERE D  CHRENEENHH(E2
ERREEZAMETHBLAREE
EEMRERBOFH DT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLLEE
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREF T
Directors’ emoluments Ea|
— Salaries and other benefits — e REMET 208 50
— Discretionary performance — — WiEEN RS
related bonus* 82 34
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIREAEE
contributions HR 13 10
Total emoluments Ee Rk 303 94

* Directors are entitled to bonus payments which are
determined based on the duties and responsibilities of
the Directors as well as the operating results of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S 10. EEREEHFH &

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a)

EEHME
Bt 2017412431 H 1F F Z

Year ended 31 December 2017

Salaries Contribution to

Discretionary

and other retirement performance -
benefits benefit scheme related bonus Total
ek EHREF M5
H g Fl =t B % BEuRS #at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥ TR AR¥TrR AR%Txn
Executive directors: BITES:
Ms. Li Xingying FTEALL 71 7 40 118
Mr. Huang Guangming (note 2) HER L& (E2) 68 6 L'y 116
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Ms. Zhao Ying (note 3) AL (i 53) = — — —
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES:
Mr. Choi Hon Keung, Simon mE kg 23 — — 23
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert ToxkEBL 23 - - 23
Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan R FE 3 5 & 23 = = 23
Total Fo 208 13 82 303
Year ended 31 December 2016 B E2016F12H31H 1k F&
Salaries  Contribution to Discretionary
and other retirement  performance -
benefits  benefit scheme related bonus Total
ek EARER BE
H a7l BE R BHRS Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARYET T ARMTT AR®TT AR¥TR
Executive directors: BITES:
Ms. Li Xingying FERFNL 50 10 34 9%
Mr. Huang Guangming (note 2) HEHEE (i) — — - -
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Ms. Zhao Ying (note 3) Azt (fE3) — — - -
Total Fhy 50 10 34 9%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’'S 10. EEREEHFMH =

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

96

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@) EZFHH @)

Notes: B 5

(1) The directors’ emoluments shown above were for their (1) T EEHFHHENEEAERE
services in connection with the management of the B R -
affairs of the Group.

(2) During the year ended 31 December 2016 and the period (2) A Z=20169F12H318 1F F E #2017
from 1 January 2017 to 30 September 2017, Mr. Huang F1A18 £20179F9H300 HifE - &
Guangming received his emoluments from a fellow BRREERTIAREER RN E QA
subsidiary of the Group, part of which was in respect of Ft B & - H A 0 5 B 15 280 0 7 BB
his services as employee to Langfang Wantong and BERMRARAREERB -ANE
director of the Company. No apportionment has been FRAERERBHERMERAARE
made as the Directors consider that it is impracticable to ERAEERRZKN B QBRSSO E
apportion these amounts between his services to MLl o ERFBEBIDER &
Langfang Wantong and director of the Company and his I AR R o
services to the fellow subsidiary of the Group.

Mr. Huang Guangming received his emoluments from a HERLEAEA2017F10818 £UE
subsidiary of the Group since 1 October 2017. AEEHBRARASEHE -

(3)  During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, (3)  E 20167 %2017 128318 Ik F
Ms. Zhao Ying received her emoluments from a fellow EoHBEzTWIAEER XM B
subsidiary of the Group, part of which was in respect of RAFAME  HP o Emkn
her services as employee to Langfang Wantong and RENEREARNREEER - A
director of the Company. No apportionment has been REERREBRERBEHERERAA
made as the Directors consider that it is impracticable to REZEERAEERRME R A RSE
apportion these amounts between her services to BRI B DB ERIBATE
Langfang Wantong and director of the Company and her B R EAE B
services to the fellow subsidiary of the Group.

(b) Employee’s emoluments (b) 1 8 %M

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
year included two directors whose payment was below

HK$1,
(2016:

000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017
one director whose payment was below

HK$1,000,000). Details of whose emoluments are set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2016:
four) highest paid employees who are not the Directors
are as follows:

AEEAEEREESFMATBRE
HZE2017F 128318 I FE FHE R
1,000,000/ 7T B Y 4 Z= = (20164 -
— R EEHHER1,000,00087T)  H
TWFBEREX - BT =RIFES
&= BE B (20164 : 1U5) H 5 B
ERdlp N

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Salaries and other allowances e REMER 580 522
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R AKAE I F 8] 3 14 28
594 550
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE'S 10. EEREEFM @
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Employee’s emoluments (continued) (b) 1 8 % ih
The number of the highest paid employees who are not IEEHERTHEENTFMANFUT
the Directors whose emoluments fell within the & [F -

following band is as follows:

Number of employees

EEHA

2017 2016

20175 20164

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 3 4
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the RAFE  AEBWERAESFKIFSE
Group to the Directors or the non-director highest paid Em 5 OE B A E B AR S E o
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the AREESRIEAMA RS BB E
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2016: nil). (2016F : T) o N EBRIFEESE
In addition, none of the Directors nor the non-director BEEFMEERANFERMERETEM

highest paid employees waived any emoluments during B & (2016%F « &) o

the year (2016: nil).

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FIBHEX
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLEE

2017 2016
2017% 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARET T
Current enterprise income tax BNER S P15 R 4,537 4,488
Deferred tax (note 18) I FE R IE (K 7E18) 2,235 35
6,772 4,523
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 1. REHEX @
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FEBBRIHERBATNEMNERNOT

before taxation as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZENAMBLEE
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T AR T
Profit before taxation B %50 A1 Vg ) 13,895 20,716
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25% 2 A E25%
FFEMRIE 3,474 5,179
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax IR Aok R
purpose e 1,991 4
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose 878 i2 7 W A B 4 7%
T & (900) (660)
Withholding tax on dividend declared by a PRC " BB B 2~ A 5 /& A%
subsidiary (note b) BRTEN (i 5Eb) 2,200 —
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERTEHEER
M2 7 —
Tax charge BiIE R < 6,772 4,523
Notes: B 5
(a) Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT (a) REBEPBECEMREBFRETECEMRBRED
Law”) and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax RAEMGREAREED  REKERQ
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. B K B25% ©
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated RmEHAE - BB SRR G ERE &
assessable profit during the reporting period. No Provision for FE16.5%FTHE - AR AEEHNHBEAFL
Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made in the consolidated BEAHMNEENESHOERTRN e
financial statements as the Group’s subsidiaries had no U BREPAUEELETENCGHERE -

assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.

(b) In accordance with the PRC tax circular (Guoshuihan [2008] 112) (b) Ri% 52008F1 1B AU B RS @
effective from 1 January 2008, the PRC withholding income tax BK (BB &% FK[2008]1125%) © B R A10%H)
at the rate of 10% is applicable to dividends to “non-resident” BIENMAMEHERRNEKN TEPEY EER
investors who do not have an establishment or place of sk EEBNEERIEEENRE -
business in the PRC. The amount represents the withholding FZFBETPBEMB AR EIRE M A
income tax provided on dividend declared but not yet paid by a MR EMBEBHNBRBERE KA ARE
PRC subsidiary amounting to RMB22,000,000. 22,000,0007T °
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AAREBEABESRERAREBEERT IR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the BT EEE
following data:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12ANBLEE
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB‘000
AR¥ETR ARETT
Earnings: B
Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic R E GRRER
earnings per share (profit for the year B2 F
attributable to owners of the Company) (ARElEE A
FEEFRER) 7,123 16,193
Numbers of shares: RRHBE
Weighted average numbers of ordinary shares for FALA 5 M’_Hx%ﬂ‘
the purpose of calculating basic earnings per BFmEEREE
share 815,753,425 750,000,000
The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating AU EEREARABFMHEBREBEEHE

13.

basic earnings per share has been adjusted retrospectively for
the effect of the Reorganisation (set out in note 2) and
Capitalisation Issue (set out in note 25) as if the
Reorganisation and Capitalisation Issue had been completed
on 1 January 2016.

No diluted earnings per share for both 2017 and 2016 were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue
for both 2017 and 20176.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during 2017 (2016: nil).

13.

(SR E2) BB A (b 31T (B M 5E25)
EENFEEEARE  BUEARER
1TER2016F1A1H =K °

R2017F 2016 F BB A D BT fméﬁx
HR20174F K2016F W K 2 7 & & #58
F o

Hﬁ /%\

R2017F - ARAIEST A EEIHERE
TEEBRBE(2016%F « ) o
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14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

14. MERRHE

Furniture,
Leasehold Motor fixtures and
Buildings improvements vehicles equipment Total
FH# -
g HEWEHEE HE HBERRRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBTT ARKETRT ARBETRT AR%KTTT
Cost AR
At 1 January 2016 2016F1A1H 6,599 318 573 474 7,964
Additions NE — — 84 17 101
At 31 December 2016 20165 12A31H 6,599 318 657 491 8,065
Additions NE — — 173 422 595
At 31 December 2017 20179F12A31H 6,599 318 830 913 8,660
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2016 2016F1A1H (4,381) — (540) (357) (5,278)
Provided for the year FREE (284) (16) (13) (36) (349)
At 31 December 2016 20165 12A31H (4,665) 16) (553) (393) (5,627)
Provided for the year FRBE (284) 15) (44) (59) (402)
At 31 December 2017 20179 12H31H (4,949) (31 (597) (452) (6,029)
Carrying amount AR (&
At 31 December 2017 2017 12H31H 1,650 287 233 461 2,631
At 31 December 2016 20165 12A31H 1,934 302 104 98 2,438

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis, taking into account their residual
values, at the following rates per annum:

FAYMERRBRBFRHBKEEANERE
BRIATFEXRFTE:

Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining lease term of land and useful life
of buildings of 20 years

BF BT ATE R RBF A A FH0FHBRES

Leasehold improvements 20.00%

HEMEEE

Motor vehicles 16.16%

e

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

B KERRE

19.40%-32.33%
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWE

RMB’000
ARBFT

Fair value A¥HE
At 1 January 2016 201651 H1H 5,130
Gain on fair value change of investment properties WEMERNTFEZGH W 140
At 31 December 2016 20165F12A31H 5,270
Gain on fair value change of investment properties WEMERNTFEZGH K 140
At 31 December 2017 2017912 A31H 5,410

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals are measured using fair value model and is
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2016 and 2017 were arrived at on the basis of
valuation carried out by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Ltd (a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors), an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with
the Group.

The Group engaged the third party qualified valuer to perform
the valuation. The Directors work closely with the qualified
external valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

The fair value of investment properties are derived using the
direct comparison method. Direct comparison method is by
reference to market comparable with adjustments to reflect the
additions and locations of the subject properties.

In measuring the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

ARBNEENERAREERESHME
BaR A PEEAGE  DBRIEREY
#

R2016F K%2017F12A318 - AEBEKEY
ENATEREAEETEBENBLGE
BEEHEMBETEEFHBEBERAA
(BBRAEMEZeg8)MHEER -

AEBZERE=TEERMEEMETHE -
EEHAERIINPEEMZYAE R
B EE W b E Rl B -

REVENRTVTEEEBERLEEMG - B
BELBESEM S AL B EL(EHRE
ARBRIZE Y E KA D R E -

AEMENRTER  MENRSRRER
BABERR-

TREJEHABEXSEREDELTFENT
EREM (BRI RMFEANGETEREA
B MREA qZ{EEJr%E’JE@)\%(H““E’JTEE
REEBATEFESIENAFEER -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
At 31 December 2017

15. BEWZ »)

201712 H318

Relationship of

Investment properties Valuation technique(s)  Significant unobservable inputs
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable input(s) to fair value
RERER ERFAEE TABEBRAYE

AEEFBRENE NYEER TEBABE BARE EATLENER
Investment properties  Level 3 Direct comparison method  Site unit rate, using An increase in the site
(Carrying amount: The key input is: direct market comparable unit rate used would
RMB5,410,000) (1) Site unit rate and taking into account  result in a same

of time, location and percentage increase in

individual factors such as the fair value

size and quantum of measurement of the

properties, of RMB528/  investment properties

sg.m. and vice versa.
REME F=E BRLEUA BBl E RAE MERSHELMLE
(BREE TERABER EMSTLBIEETM FASEBRENE
AR #5,410,0007T) ()55 4 B i b & R mEMEME ATEFELAER

SIRE flmHERE WO R2mR-

At 31 December 2016

REBEE  BARYS28T

SRR

2016512 H31H

Relationship of

Investment properties Valuation technique(s)  Significant unobservable inputs
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable input(s) to fair value
RERER ERFUEE TABEEBAYE
rEERERENE NYEER TEBABE BARE BATLENER
Investment properties Level 3 Direct comparison method  Site unit rate, using An increase in the site

(Carrying amount:
RMB5,270,000)

BEME
(BRmE:
AR #5,270,00070)

The key input is:
(1) Site unit rate

BELBE
TRBARRA:
(WEEA R

There were no transfers into and out of Level 3 in both years.
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direct market comparable

and taking into account
of time, location and

individual factors such as

size and quantum of
properties, of RMB514/

sqg.m.
BB E  RAE
BEm% A L BIER I 5t

RB R - 3t B0 A (R
FIEE - flmyEHE

kEg AARES14T

GLE

unit rate used would
result in a same
percentage increase in
the fair value
measurement of the
investment properties
and vice versa.

BT 68 FB 45 3 B8 07 L X%
AR EENE
AEEFELAER
Ll Rz A -
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At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

15. BEWZE »)
NFEFTEMEERE
EHAEEREMLENATEE AEHE
EREEHNTIS BRI - ML EE— B
MEARE AEESEREE=HAEKE
B AR EBNRENLEREE - AEBEH
EEERFAE_B@ARE NEBEHA
BT RIS T ER RS -
BE_ENBARE SEBIERAOIE
=B B A £ R o

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engaged third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation of the Group’s investment properties. The Group will
first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt
valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs.

16. CEMETERY ASSETS 16. EEEE

Prepaid lease Landscape Development

payments facilities costs Total
EREE SERR BEREKAR #Et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTFT AR®FTT ARETT ARBTT
Cost (BN
At 1 January 2016 201651418 8,557 389 830 9,776
Additions NE — 227 — 227
At 31 December 2016 20165 12A31H 8,557 616 830 10,003
Additions NE — 2,581 — 2,581
At 31 December 2017 20179 12A31H 8,557 3,197 830 12,584
Amortisation B8y
At 1 January 2016 2016514318 (2,752) (8) (267) (3,027)
Provided for the year 4 (N 5 (171) (27) (17) (215)
At 31 December 2016 20165 12A31H (2,923) (35) (284) (3,242)
Provided for the year 4 N & (171) (62) (17) (250)
At 31 December 2017 20179 12A31H (3,094) (97) (301) (3,492)
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2017 20179 12A31H 5,463 3,100 529 9,092
At 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H 5,634 581 546 6,761
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16. CEMETERY ASSETS (continued)

“:_, .

The prepaid lease payments have definite useful lives and
amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term of 50
years.

Landscape facilities represent the construction cost of arbors
and bridges in the mausoleum. Amortisation for landscape
facilities is provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the remaining lease term of land or useful life, which is 20
years.

Development costs represent the costs paid for the foundation
work and putting the land into the condition ready for
development of cemetery business. Amortisation for
development costs is provided on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life (same as prepaid lease payments over the
lease term).

Upon commencement of development of an area within the
cemetery, the proportionate cemetery assets are transferred to
inventories.

16. EEEE )

BNESAERFHER  LEREN0F
THE R -

SEREERETZFRBROBFRALN -
SBREABRER LR SRE B LA 8
FH0FENREEREH -

BEREAERBETRER AR I TR ER
HEEBEOGET SR - BRKA
BERERAEF A ERFH (LR B AnEN
MERR) AR -

HEEAXMERMKERER BEREERLD
BEREFRE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17. At HERE

At 31 December

ELETIRE -
— RAES

Unlisted investment:
— equity securities

MW12H31H
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
71,300 53,000

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group further
made cash contribution of RMB18,300,000 to Suburban Rural
Credit Cooperatives of Langfang City (EE3y T 2R {EH &
{EB#4E). At 31 December 2017, the Group has 10% and
5.78% equity interests in Huimin Town Bank Co., Ltd of Anci
District, Langfang City (B¥i & X ERNERITRMHAER
A ®]) and Suburban Rural Credit Cooperatives of Langfang
City, respectively (31 December 2016: 10% and 5.78%,
respectively). The Group is not able to assign any director to
the board of directors of these investees to exercise significant
influence over these investees. As such, these investments are
classified as available-for-sale investments and measured at cost
less impairment at the end of the reporting period because the
ranges of reasonable fair value estimates are so significant that
the Directors are of the opinion that the fair values cannot be
reliably measured. The Group does not intend to dispose them
in the near future.

HE2017FNA3MHLEFE  AEE MY
THDIENEAGEBLIERSARE
18,300,0007T ° /20175 12A318 » AEE D
ARG TmZAEERNERITROER
NE LB TS RN E A A A 10% &
5.78% M #E (20165128318 : 2 31 B10% &
578% ) c AEBE TR LM EHEMNES
SEMEEF UHZSREYURITEEAY
ZhHeE LEEIAATHBER
B RERERRIEKABRERTE - T E
REBRAFEGABEAKR  EFRAETHE
ARFEATE - AEETEHNITHDE £
MIEE o
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18. DEFERRED TAXATION

The deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group and

18. IEZLEF 1E

AEBRNAFEMBEFERABNRELERE

movements thereon during the current and prior years are as aEREZEHNT
follows:
Withholding tax on Fair value
dividend declared by  change on
a PRC subsidiary investment
but not yet paid properties Total
RE N NG|
FREMAZMN REVED
WRERTEMR D[ FEED st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBFT AR®TRT ARETT
At 1 January 2016 201651 H1H — 40 40
Charge to profit or loss g Eaitlo
(note 11) (BE&E11) — 35 35
At 31 December 2016 2016512 HA31H — 75 75
Charge to profit or loss REBEZNER
(note 11) (BiEE11) 2,200 35 2,235
At 31 December 2017 2017%12AR31H 2,200 110 2,310

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB29,000 (31 December 2016: nil) available for offset
against future profits. As at 31 December 2017, unused tax
loss of RMB29,000 (31 December 2016: nil) had not been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

18. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 18. ELEBIE ()
The following unrecognised PRC income tax losses has fixed T3E EE N H B R R R B TS E R
expiry date, which will be expired in the following year: R TFERE:

At 31 December

R12A31H
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR ARBETF T
31 December 2022 20224F12A31H 29 —
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on B AP B ES R L B2008F1A1H
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC B AR BB B A B B E AR R A S R AR
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation SRS o B A% B K aE 15 il Ba i
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial EEBEMEK  BZEREZEBENTRERK
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to AT EETRERE - R BRI B AR 25T
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to i FOFE G BR R ZE B A R #14,355,0007T
RMB14,355,000 (31 December 2016: RMB20,833,000) as the (20164124318 : A R ¥20,833,00070) i
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the SO MERELRERIERME - 20174
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary 12A318 - BEERERELEHBEEBEAAR
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The #1,436,0007C (2016128318 : A R #
corresponding unrecognised deferred tax liabilities as at 2,083,0007T) °

31 December 2017 was RMB1,436,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB2,083,000).

19. INVENTORIES 19. &8
At 31 December
MW12831H

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Burial plots B 897 1,135
Tombstones = 1,963 3,408
Others i 677 958
3,537 5,501
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20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. BN ER HEttEIWFIE

At 31 December

R12A31H
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AR T
Other receivables (note) H b fE YR IE (B 5E) = 4,684
Staff advance BT #X 40 190
Prepayments TEF RIE 77 —
Deferred initial public offering expenses EEHERAAEERX = 476
Others H 195 397
312 5,747
Note: Other receivables at 31 December 2016 represented receivables 5T : 720165012 A31H &Y H fih i U 7118 45 fE Uk
amounting to RMB4,684,000 from an independent third party, BUE=ZFREMEGHEBRARNNK
BB 5 E B R A A (Langfang Puchang Trading Co., Ltd.). T8 A R #4,684,0007T - it fE W 3K T8 & IF
The aforesaid receivables were non-trade in nature, interest-free, BoMhE %8 EER BRFRES -

unsecured and were fully settled during the year.

21. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21. RITERREAE
Bank balances carried interest at market interest rate ranging 2017 NA3MB -S| ITEBREBFRZN T
from 0.30% to 0.35% per annum as at 31 December 2017 0.30%%0.35%H) ™ % 7 X 5 £ (2016512
(31 December 2016: 0.35% to 0.40% per annum). RMB is not A318 : BF N F0.35%F0.40% ) - ARHE
a freely convertible currency in the international market. The ETARBEEMEZEREBERNEE - ARE
exchange rate of RMB is determined by the government of the HEXRBPBEBFTEE  #ZSHEEDF
PRC and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is Bl 5% A B T p 0 &Y BE 3 BRI R PR o
subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the government of
the PRC.
The Group’s bank balances and cash are denominated in the REBRTEBRERBESUTIEBEE

following currencies:

At 31 December
M12A31H

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREETF T

Denominated in RMB AR E 30,624 57,091
Denominated in HK$ A Tt E 51,096 —
81,720 57,091
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. ESRHEMENKIE
At 31 December

®12A31A
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® Tt ARET T
Trade payables H 5 N RIE 2,353 945
Advances from customers BEBR 9,141 21,003
Accrued expenses FEET X 8,626 7,625
Accrued initial public offering expenses EETE X ARABEERY 1,065 1,336
21,185 30,909

Deposits from customers are in most cases received from
customers before the delivery of cemetery and tombstones is
made and provision of cemetery maintenance services. All sales
and services are typically settled on a cash basis. No credit
period is granted to customers for sale of burial plots and
provision of cemetery maintenance services.

REBAT  EFRENINEERERM
REZEEERE 2ARZTPUER - FAH
EMRBEBEARSEE - WEARBHEEM
MR EE#ERGAEPRLERS -

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented NTASMEAREREZEAHNZEINESE
based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting RIB R BRER D AT
period:
At 31 December
R12A31H
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tx ARET T
Less than 1 year 15K 2,230 699
1 to 2 years 15824 27 42
2 to 3 years 2E34F 33 149
Over 3 years 3F LA E 63 55
2,353 945
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23. DEFERRED INCOME 23. FEEEWA
Deferred income represents the portion of the revenue REW AR EEREERGFAERRTRE

15 Mo 2 e R O e S I I R R W R B
HE B o

generated from the provision of cemetery maintenance services
that has not been earned as revenue in accordance with the
revenue recognition policy and the nature of the business.

At 31 December

M12H31H
2017 2016
20176 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt AREFT T
Carrying amount analysed as: FREEITET
Amounts shown under current liabilities AERBEEN®E 3,220 2,962
Amounts shown under non-current WAEERDEENDRE
liabilities 48,487 39,295
51,707 42,257

The Group provides on-going cemetery maintenance services as
part of the burial services to maintain the landscaped
cemeteries and the large number of memorials that lie on the
cemeteries.

Customers who purchase burial services are required to make
advance payments for maintenance fees, relating to the
maintenance of their burial lots and memorials over 20 years,
and such amounts are generally paid together with the
purchase of our burial plots.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
generated revenue from the provision of cemetery
maintenance services in the amount of approximately
RMB3,051,000 (2016: RMB2,648,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

24. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED

25.

24,
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

EHRERERME

BMERPRABLRE:

Amounts waived

At Financing by related parties At
1 January 2017 cash flows (note) 31 December 2017
) LEREI
R2017515818 MERSRKE (FaF) 20176128318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R ARBT T
Amounts due to related parties & B3 &t 5 3B = 38,709 (37,957) 752
At Financing At
1 January 2016 cash flows Interest expenses 31 December 2016
7201651718 RERERE MER%  72016512A31H
RMB’OOO RMB’OOO RMB’OOO RMB’OOO
ARBFT ARBTT ARBTR ARBFT
Short term bank borrowings RERTER 77,000 (81,756) 4,756 —

Note: Amounts represented non-cash transactions.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Group as at 31 December 2016
represented the share capital of Langfang Wantong. The
issued share capital of the Group as at 31 December 2017
represented the share capital of the Company.

25.

MisE: AR FRERS °

[N

AREEPN2016F12 831 BRI AIE 7 & i
FIRE AR - FR2017F12A31B B BT AR

RRBRA o

Number of shares RMB’000
v d= AREFT
Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each FRR0.01E T E B K
Authorised: VETE
At 25 January 2017 201751 H25H
(upon incorporation) (FEMR AR 2 BF) 50,000 4
Increase on 23 May 2017 7201745 23 H 1 AN
(note a) (M 5ta) 2,999,950,000 205,980
At 31 December 2017 2017 12A31H 3,000,000,000 205,984
Issue and fully paid: TIT MR
At 25 January 2017 (note 2(ii) 7201791 H25H
(B FE2(i)) 1 —
Issue of shares on 1 February 2017 R201792 18 317
(note 2(ii)) A& (B 52 2(00) ) 9,999 1
Issue of shares on 27 September 2017 M201769H278 17
(note b) P& 17 (P =Eb ) 749,990,000 49,643
Issue of shares to the public on M201749H278 17
27 September 2017 (note ¢) B F AR () 250,000,000 16,548
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12H31H 1,000,000,000 66,192
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a) On 23 May 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased to US$30,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 2,999,950,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
Us$0.01.

(b) Pursuant to the resolutions in writing of the shareholders of the
Company passed on 7 September 2017 and 26 September
2017, it is resolved that conditional on the other reserve
account, retained earnings account and share premium account
of the Company being credited as a result of the global
offering (see note (c) below for further details), the Directors
were authorised to capitalise an amount of US$7,499,900
standing to the credit of the other reserve account, retained
earnings account and share premium account of the Company
by applying such sum to pay up in full at par 749,990,000
shares of the Company (the “Capitalisation Issue”).

(c) On 27 September 2017, the Company issued 250,000,000
ordinary shares to the public with a par value of US$0.01 each
at the price of HK$0.28 per share by way of global offering. On
the same date, the Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange.

26. RESERVES
Other reserve

Other reserve represented (1) the difference between the share
capital of Langfang Wantong and the cash consideration paid
for acquisition of Langfang Wantong pursuant to the
Reorganisation; (2) an amount of RMB32,500,000 payable to
Mr. Wang lJianjun by the Group which was waived by him and
accounted for as a deemed contribution to the Group and
subject to a tax charge of approximately RMB8,125,000; (3) an
amount of RMB5,457,000 payable to Ms. Zhao Ying by the
Group which was waived by her and accounted for as a
deemed contribution to the Group; and (4) an amount of
RMB5,023,000 capitalised into share capital pursuant to the
Capitalisation Issue.

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the relevant PRC rules and regulations, the
subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in the PRC are required
to transfer no less than 10% of their profits after taxation,
after offsetting any prior years’ loss as determined under the
China Accounting Standards, to the statutory surplus reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the
distribution of a dividend to shareholders of the PRC
subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve is non-distributable other
than in liquidation and can be used to make good previous
years' losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-in capital
in proportion to the existing interests of equity owners,
provided that the balance after such conversion is not less
than 25% of the registered capital.
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25.

26.

N

B

(@)  H2017F5H23H A QA E B R E I
2,999,950,0004% & fi% [ {E0.013% JT &) & 38
B% -+ ¥ 5% 7 A% 78 # 30,000,000 T ©

(b) RIEAQBREN2017F9A7H K20174F9
A26B@BHMEBMARE  FARAMNHE
thiEER RBESREIBRANEERERER
REEMESERRZ (GFBRMEC) X
EERABARTNEMEHE REA
£ AR R AR 19 ) (8 AR &) 3 BR §87,499,9003% 7T
B 78 B A 1% T E 812 749,990,0008% & A
Az B ([EARE1T]) -

(0 MR2017F9H27H  ARBIUNEKREENT
X AERO2SB LM ARBETEREE
0.013 Jjt & #£250,000,0000% % & A% - [
B ARRIMBRMDERBERZA L e

(R
H i i 8

HimfEEE OWEBHERNRANERIZEMA
WERHERAMAMESCRENEZE: QT2
EEEREREAEBEARIARIETERN
JE 1 3B A R 532,500,000 ¢ :ZRIEEE
BB EM 4 AR %8,125,0007T 5 (3)iH
FMZTREREAEEARY AEIETEN
JfE I~ F 3B A R #55,457,0007T ¢ B (AR
5,023,000TC IR B E AL BT HFTE A o

VR TE B8R W 1R

RIBEFBEEERORER  NEBAPEF
MM E R R BENBR BT FEREHR
EerrE£RETHEEEZ BTLOR10%H
BREREENERELTRGHERE B2
wEaRE DM B ANE50% © B A B BB
NAIBRE DRI E 2 AU B =z 18 - BRIE
EEMBAREE  TALATEABRREETA
FUDIR - ATERGHEETHARNERBTF
EMEE(NE)  RBREEE ABREEDS
WL PSR SR E AR  EIREERTE
DREMEAREI25% ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

27.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, if
any, net of cash and cash equivalents and total equity of the

Group.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on

7. EXERER

AREERER BRAEEEBENEE
RREEEGE  ABEREELRESE
BEE 6T RERAE R - A5 E o &
B 5% B BB 1 — R R -

AEBENEREBEBEER(WNH) LMNEFRIR
ELRCEFEYMURAEEEDREE -

AEBEEEEENRAENERE - RIFAH

e BEEEEREAKNAREERHERD
Rk EREEBNERZE A5ESE
BEEHEL ZOHEBLABELREE
B PARBERERE-

a regular basis. As part of this review, the management
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with the
capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through raising
of new capital, issue of new debt or the redemption of the
existing debts.

28. £ T A

TRIEAEDE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments a.

At 31 December

®W12H31A
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T T AR T
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables: EAREYFIE -
Other receivables H fto jE U 5 E 235 5,271
Amounts due from related parties JE Uit BA Bt 7 3RIE 2,058 .
Bank balances and cash RITHEHB LIRS 81,720 57,091
84,013 62,362
Available-for-sale investments RN ERE
Investments in unlisted entities REFTEEBHKRE 71,300 53,000
Financial liabilities STREE
Liabilities at amortised cost: LSRR B (E -
Trade and other payables 2 5 & H M ERFRIE 11,226
Amount due to a related party JE 1F B8 Bk 5 RKIE 752
11,978
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's financial instruments consisted of available-
for-sale investments, other receivables, amounts due
from related parties, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables and amount due to a related party.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(i) Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of interest rates.

There has been no change to the Group's
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk from prior year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank deposits carried at prevailing
market interest rates based on or by reference to
the interest rate promulgated by the People’s Bank
of China.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis is not presented as the
management of the Group considered that the
sensitivity of the Group’s exposure towards the
change in interest rate is not material to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # B & 1 & (%) B R 2 7]

28. €W T A ()

b.

TRE R EIR B R MR
AEEMNERTAREATHEER
B EMm BN RIE KRB S R
HORTEHERE BEHREME
NHRBERENEBETRE - 2RITA
MFBRERNERE 2252/
TERBNRREENEXER F&E
R ERESHE SRR

DR A BRI T X o
rEFREREERERERZEAR
BRI AEREITEEHEE -

iy TWHER
AEBEKLSEHTIEMHN X
R

BE—F  AEETEHOTSA
P D LE BES T
W m D -

T 3 2 g & FE

MR R RE RS ERE
ARARTT FTAR I R 5 B A0S
SRR E AL AEEEY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28. €@ I B

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. TrEMREERZEREEK®E
(continued)
(i) Market risk (continued) (i mHRRE)

Foreign currency risk

The Group collects all of the revenue in RMB and
incurs most of the expenditures as well as capital
expenditures in RMB.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Assets
BE
At 31 December
MA12H831H

2017 2016
20174 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T N R

HK$ BT 53,281 —

S FE J2 R
REEMAWREAAREI
B KA 7 s & AN B S2 IR BA
AR¥EEE-

REBINEHBECEREER
EBABENRERRREER
T

Liabilities
=R
At 31 December

MA12H831H
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREB Tt BNERw

1,149 —

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in
HK$ against RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a reasonably possible change of 5% in
exchange rate of each foreign currency against
RMB while all other variables are held constant.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates.

AEBEIZEHBETHEAREE
TR B A -

TRHAEMERMBEZRGERT
HEOBERLT  ARBEHSEINE
BARMEE ER5%H A I2 4 [E
BEZHNEEE 5% KM
RENLEEERABERINE
R ERMBUREL R - I
REEEEBHEXRSEHE 2 E
EEHNTE - FREDNER
EASNEFENREELER A
B YRBEMRYINEEREE
B5% Fh -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

An analysis of sensitivity to currency risk for the
Group is as follows:

28. T T B
b. TREREEBFNMEXGE

(i  THIERER(E)
B 7T (4E)
REBEBHEBRR
mr

2 R E DT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12BMBLEE
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET ARBTT
Increase/(decrease) in post-tax FABRBERF 25
profit for the year /(5)E§ P)
— if RMB weakens e AR H B T E 58
against HK$ 2,607 —
— if RMB strengthens R AR BTER
against HK$ (2,607) —
Credit risk (i EERRE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group's RMEER  AEBHRE KR
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause B EMEYSEsANE®mat
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to BRENESEEER IEA M
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is ISR REFMEBERRN S
arising from the carrying amount of the respective A BE T A A
recognised financial assets as stated in the h
consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group’s credit risk primarily relates to other $E.£Ffﬂ REREAKE
receivables, amounts due from related parties and EIJJE”&A//\ HAoEUWFIE - &

bank balances. The credit risk on bank balances is
limited because the bank balances are maintained
with large commercial banks in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

Liquidity risk management

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived based on the
interest rate outstanding at the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U B ¥R R M

o,

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 L F[E

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(iii)  Liquidity risk management (continued)

28. €W I A

b. SrlEkREEBFREE®E

(iii)

nEE T RERE R (&)

Weighted Total Total
average Less than undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year cash flows amount
REEH
HeRg EREE
bnAE 9 R = DRE ok Fohay
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2017 20174 12A31H
Non-derivative financial JFHT4E S B BE
liabilities
Trade and other B 5 REAM
payables J& R~ RIE — 11,226 11,226 11,226
Amount due to a J& < Ba Bk 5 7R I8
related party — 752 752 752
Total st 11,978 11,978 11,978
At 31 December 2016 20165 12A31H
Non-derivative financial T4 4@ BE
liabilities
Trade and other B 5 R E MR
payables 18 — 9,211 9,211 9,211

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair
values.

TREEMBBENAFERER
REBRAZUBARSREIMN
BT -

AEEEEERRAHMBERE
NIZB AT & BB E R
BEMNEREREQAFERS -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29, RREHE A
The Group as lessor AEBEALMEA
The investment properties held by the Group for rental AEEFERDENREMFHEBPETLY
purpose have committed tenants for six years with fixed RAERBER HEEE -
rental.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted WER  NEEBERETAIRELEHL M
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments BPEAVATAREEBE RSN :

under non-cancellable operating leases:

At 31 December

#12831H
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETF T
Within one year —FR 200 200
In the second to the fifth year, inclusive E_FRERF
(BRIEERWE) 400 600
600 800
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. EXREGE
At 31 December
M12H31H
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T
Contracted but not provided for in the BETHERR
consolidated financial statements: At g R EE
— Expenditure in respect of equipment — REFTENRX 465 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

31.

32.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC Government.
The Group is required to contribute 20% of the total monthly
basic salaries of its current employees to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to
make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
RMB475,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB490,000), represented contributions paid and/or payable to
the scheme by the Group for the reporting period.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances as at the end of the reporting period with related
parties:

(@) Amounts due from related parties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
amounts receivable from the following related parties
and the details are set out below:

31.

32.

iR k18 R 5T 8
AEBREETEBRAMEFEREERK
BAGTEINKE - AEEARREREEH
ERF & AR R20% [A) R R 48 5 81 R
REBEBRNEHRES REKRBENEEM
FoARENE-BEERELEEMRRK-

B E2017F12A31BLEFE  RefEak
Hth2mBaRmRMBOEXN IO BEARKE
475,0007T (20164F :+ A & #490,0007T) © &
REERBEHANRZTE DN Rk EN

B R

BE T R 5
R8s R SRR 2 B

(a) FEYRAES )7 SRR

MRS BIR - A E EUA T B8 B
ZHRERFEWT

At 31 December

M12831H
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AR T

Company controlled by Mr. Wang

HMEZFELELEEHNZAA

Jianjun (note): (M%) -
FRAREEXEMBAERAER QDA PRIAREEMBAERE
(China VAST Industrial Urban BRAF
Development Co., Ltd.) 2,057 —
Ultimate holding company: REZERAF
Tai Shing International BB 1 —
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a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32. BAEBE R X 5 (@)

(a) Amounts due from related parties (continued) (a) FEUCFARSE 5 318 ()

All amounts due from related parties are non-trade FrEREE T RIBEHRBIEE S EE
nature and were denominated in RMB, unsecured, DUARBHNE EKF 28 HBE
interest free and repayable on demand. The amounts BERKEEZ BAEFRBEREEZSH
have been fully received before the date of issuance of BIS R R A M B H AT B EURE o AT
these consolidated financial statements. The following BERIZEB(R RGN (F622E) 78
information is disclosed pursuant to section 78 of R RN ESK - BEATE AR AHE
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance BINEE32E) BE161BIEIEH W E -

(Cap.622), which requires compliance with section 161B
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(Cap. 32):
Maximum amount outstanding
At 31 December
BERkEELE
R12A31H
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT
Mr. Wang Jianjun (note) TEF £ (M) — 9,600
Ms. Zhao Ying BT — 92
Company controlled by BT EE L E
Mr. Wang Jianjun: AN
PEEZFEZMHEERAR A A PRAREEMEER
(China VAST Industrial Urban BRAA
Development Co., Ltd.) 2,057 —
Fellow subsidiaries: EESGIEASE
LT MAERAA LERTMBERRAA
(Fengsheng Asia Co., Ltd.) — 59
By ERCEEEAMRNERAT BT ERCEETEAN
(Langfang Fengsheng Enterprise ER QA
Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd.) e 10
Ultimate holding company: HARERAT]
Tai Shing International R X B BR 1 —
Note: Mr. Wang Jianjun is the husband of the Ultimate M FREAERREERBRNIK -

Controlling Shareholder.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # £2017F12A318 It FE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Amount due to a related party

32. B AR Z )
(b) FETRAHEE 5 218

At 31 December

M12831H
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AR T

Ultimate Controlling Shareholder: BT R
Ms. Zhao Ying fERE At

752

The amount due to a related party is non-trade nature
and was denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand. The amount has been fully
paid before the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements.

Related party transaction

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transaction with its related party:

ENEB T RBEOEIEESED - A
ARBHE EBEW REEARE
KIEE BFRAFHECRUEAHUB
R DM EBBIBRNE

FAAEEEBBOETATRS

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31MBLEE
Nature of 2017 2016
transaction 20175 20164
REME RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T PR

Fellow subsidiary:
CEN NI
By Mk EEEREERA A
(Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd.)

Purchase of
a motor vehicle

BEAE

30

During the year, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement to acquire the entire equity interest in
Langfang Wantong from the original shareholders of
Langfang Wantong for a cash consideration of
RMB55,500,000. On 18 August 2017, Mr. Wang Jianjun
provided a loan amounting to RMB46,835,000 to the
Group to settle this consideration payable, and on
30 August 2017, he agreed to waive an amount of
RMB32,500,000 payable to him by the Group which was
accounted for as a deemed contribution to the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors, who are also key
management, is disclosed in note 10.

FR -AEETVREHZE 8BS
B R R A% BE UK B BB B B A & BP B A
B 4 8 A A K ¥55,500,0007T ° i
2017487188 ' TRELLENALEER
IRMHE A R%46,835,0007T © LAKS
R RE - MMR201798H30H @ K [
ERAARIAGIERNAERTEN
TEEENBEZREARE
32,500,0007T °

(d)

FEEEABH M
EE(ABAISERE)NG
10 E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a vt B &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
25 January 2017 and became the holding company of the
Group as at 14 March 2017. Information about the statement
of financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2017

33. ARAMBRRARKEHE

KRB R2017F1 258 EH S B S Mk
o WHR2017F3R 148K AR EEZER A
Al e BREARARN2017F12A31H B BT i Ak
NERERBEZALFENRBEINE

and its reserves movements for the year then ended were as (eSO
follows:

At
31 December
2017
2017612 A31H
RMB’000
AR T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary HEN B A F =

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Dividend receivable JE U A% B 19,800
Prepayments and other receivables T8 A5 5RIE K H h pE W SRR 77
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U B B A B FRIE 2
Amounts due from related parties JE U BA B 5 3 E 2,058
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 50,788
72,725
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE

Other payables H A fE A FRIE 340
Amount due to a related party JE 1~ B8 Bk 05 5RIE 752
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT BB A R 5K E 2,910
4,002
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEE 68,723
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES REERRBEE 68,723

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital N 66,192
Reserves it 2,531
TOTAL EQUITY M 68,723
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 L F[E

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33. XA R B MR R R EHE @

Movements in the Company’s reserves RARIFHBEE
Share Other Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
B35 8 Hin %% REBF by
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARBEFTT AR®FTT AR®FTRT ARBTR
At 25 January 2017 20179 1825H — — — —
Profit and total comprehensive FME &
income for the year TEKABE — — 11,876 11,876
Issue of new shares to the public [ AR EITH D 42,760 — — 42,760
Transaction costs attributable to BATH L WA AL
issue of new ordinary shares R KA (7,485) — — (7,485)
Capitalisation issue of shares B AR BEITR G
(note 25) (Bt 5E25) (35,275) (5,023) (9,345) (49,643)
Wavier of debt owed to MRERBEELL
Ms. Zhao Ying &8 — 5,023 — 5,023
At 31 December 2017 72017412 H31H — — 2,531 2,531




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L F[E

34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 3. RMIE R AN ERS
As at the end of the reporting period, the Company has direct RBEAR  ARABHEUATHERARDNE
and indirect equity interests in the following subsidiaries: B REERE:

Shareholding/equity
Place and the date of Issued and fully interests attributable

incorporation/ paid capital/ to the Company
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital At 31 December Principal activities
BEMAY/ RIS BERTREBRELR/ R2AMNBAARER
HELR AR REBH TEREL FREHRE TEXH
2017 2016
VINVESE 20165
Langfang Wantong PRC RMB32,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of burial plots,

26 November 2007 provision of other
burial-related services
and cemetery
maintenance services

Es 5 & i AR #32,000,0007C 100% 100%  HEEMMEHEEMGED

200711 A 268 RERERERE®E
k%

Wantong HK HK HK$1 100% N/A Investment holding

18 January 2017

B (&%) 36 BT 100%  T@8R REER
2017F1R18H
Shing Sheng International* BVI Us$1 100% N/A Investment holding
27 January 2017
B RERKEE (B 100%  T@ER REER
2017F1R278
Wantongyuan Management PRC US$10,000,000 100% N/A Investment holding
2 March 2017
BEREER i 10,000,003 7T 100%  T@ER REER
201753424
BHTERBEERBERA A PRC RMB500,000 100% N/A Provision of funeral service
(Langfang City Wantong 23 March 2017
Funeral Services Co., Ltd.)**
BomEmBEERBERRA th AR #500,0007T 100%  TER REESRE
2017F3A23H
Notes: B &F
5 Directly-held by the Company * BMARRIEERA

L English name for identification only

124 CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED A B & 4 (& (#£ %) B R 2 &



Baganqu North, Economic and
Technological Development Area
Langfang, Hebei, PRC

F B b & R
RESMARENTRE

36/F., Tower Two, Times Square
1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

BREBEHEH1R
RS 2RE3612

www.|fwty.com
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